
 

 

CITY OF PORT WENTWORTH 
CITY COUNCIL 

  MARCH 24, 2022 

 

 

  

 Council Meeting Room Regular Meeting 7:00 PM 

7224 GA HIGHWAY 21 
PORT WENTWORTH, GA  31407 

City of Port Wentworth Generated: 3/23/2022 8:40 AM Page 1   

1. CALL MEETING TO ORDER - ROLL CALL 

2. PRAYER AND PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 

3. APPROVAL OF AGENDA 

4. ADOPTION OF MINUTES 

A. City Council - Regular Meeting - Jan 27, 2022 6:30 PM 

5. RECOGNITION OF SPECIAL GUESTS 

6. ELECTIONS & APPOINTMENTS 

7. CONSENT AGENDA 

A. Antrim Road Roadway Improvements Pay Request No. 3 in the amount of $7,397.01 to 

Sandhill ALS Construction, Inc. 

B. Red Robin Court Roadway Improvements Pay Request No. 4 in the amount of $91,729.79 
to Griffin Contracting Inc. 

8. UNFINISHED BUSINESS 

9. NEW BUSINESS 

A. Updated Agreement for Legal Services 

B. DESIGN-BUILD MEMORANDUM OF UNDERSTANDING between the Georgia Department of 
Transportation and City of Port Wentworth 

C. Purchase Replacement of oxygen system from NOVAIR USA Corp. for the Waste Water 
Treatment Facility 

D. Agreement for Mutual Aid for 165th FD 

E. Site Plan Review Application submitted by Paul Larner for PIN #:7-0906-04-091 & 7-

0906-04-063 (Mulberry Blvd Extension) for a Specific Development Site Plan to Extend 
Mulberry Blvd in a M-P-O (Master Plan Overlay) Zoning District. 

 

➢Public Hearing 
➢Action 

F. Subdivision Application submitted by Lamar Mercer, PE., Thomas & Hutton Engineering 
Inc., on behalf of BEP Rice Hope, LLC., for PIN # 7-0906-04-069 (100 Lakeside Blvd) 
located in a M-P-O (Master Plan Overlay) Zoning District for a Final Plat of a Major 

Subdivision (Parkside Phase 1D-2 ) for the purpose of Single-Family Homes 



Agenda City Council March 24, 2022 

City of Port Wentworth Generated: 3/23/2022 8:40 AM Page 2   

 

➢Public Hearing 

➢Action 

G. Subdivision Application submitted by Jessica Vick, Roberts Civil Engineering, LLC., on 
behalf of Landmark 24 Homes of Savannah, LLC., for PIN # 7-0906-01-031 (Miller Park 
Circle) located in a P-R-M (Planned Residential Multi-Family) Zoning District for a 
Preliminary Plat of a Major Subdivision (Rice Creek Tract C-2 Phase V) for the purpose of 
Single-Family Homes 

 

➢Public Hearing 
➢Action 

H. Subdivision Application submitted by Jessica Vick, Roberts Civil Engineering, LLC., on 
behalf of Landmark 24 Homes of Savannah, LLC., for PIN # 7-0906-01-031 (Miller Park 
Circle) located in a P-R-M (Planned Residential Multi-Family) Zoning District for a 

Preliminary Plat of a Major Subdivision (Rice Creek Tract C-1 Phase VI) for the purpose of 
Single-Family Homes 

 

➢Public Hearing 
➢Action 

10. RESOLUTIONS/ORDINANCES/PROCLAMATIONS 

A. A Resolution of the Mayor and City Council of the City of Port Wentworth to Amend the 
Zoning Ordinance Regarding the Approval of Final Plats. 2nd Reading 

B. Resolution to Support Retreat and Feasibility Study 

C. Resolution to Transmit Comprehensive Plan 

11. EXECUTIVE SESSION 

A. Litigation 

B. Personnel 

12. PUBLIC COMMENTS - REGISTERED SPEAKERS 

13. ADJOURNMENT 



 

 

CITY OF PORT WENTWORTH 
CITY COUNCIL 

  JANUARY 27, 2022 

 

 

  

 Council Meeting Room Regular Meeting 6:30 PM 

7224 GA HIGHWAY 21 
PORT WENTWORTH, GA  31407 

City of Port Wentworth Generated: 2/7/2022 2:37 PM Page 1   

1. CALL MEETING TO ORDER 

Mayor Gary Norton called the meeting to order.  

2. PRAYER AND PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 

Reverend Paul Mongin led in Prayer and Mayor Norton led in the Pledge of Allegiance.  

3. ROLL CALL - CLERK OF COUNCIL 

 

Attendee Name Title Status Arrived 

Gary Norton Mayor  Present  

Thomas Barbee Mayor Pro Tem   Present  

Jo Smith Council Member  Present  

Gabrielle Nelson Council Member  Present  

Mark Stephens Council Member Present  

Rufus Bright Council Member  Present  

Glenn Jones Council Member  Present  

Edwin L. Booth City Manager Present  

Shanta Scarboro Clerk of Council  Present  

Tomi Rikkinen City Accountant  Absent  

Brian Harvey Director of Development Services  Present  

Lance Moore Chief of Fire Operations Present  

Yolanda Irizarry Director of Human Resources Present  

Tiffany Lancaster Director of Leisure Services  Present  

Matt Libby Chief of Police Absent  

4. APPROVAL OF AGENDA 

Council Member Thomas Barbee made a motion approve the agenda with the following 

additions: 
 
1. under Elections and Appointments add item 6. C. Accept the resignation of James L. 
Coursey, Jr. as City Attorney; 
2. under Elections and Appointments add item 6. D. Appoint Janet Hester and Margo Barbee 
to the City of Port Wentworth Planning Commission. 
3. under Unfinished Business accept items 11 .A., 11. B., and 11. C. as one vote; 

4. under New Business add item 12. G. Award the Hotel/Motel Contract to the existing Port 
Wentworth Chamber of Commerce contingent upon a two (2) business day review by the newly 
appointed Interim City Attorney;  
5. under New Business add item 12. H. Budget Adjustments to allow funding for additional 
staff;  
6. under New Business add item 12. I. Award the GFAAC Contract contingent upon a two (2) 
business day review by the newly appointed Interim City Attorney.  

 
Seconded by Council Member Mark Stephens. Vote was unanimous.  

5. RECOGNITION OF SPECIAL GUESTS 

4.A

Packet Pg. 3

M
in

u
te

s 
A

cc
ep

ta
n

ce
: 

M
in

u
te

s 
o

f 
Ja

n
 2

7,
 2

02
2 

6:
30

 P
M

  (
A

d
o

p
ti

o
n

 o
f 

M
in

u
te

s)



Minutes City Council January 27, 2022 

City of Port Wentworth Generated: 2/7/2022 2:37 PM Page 2   

A. Fire Fighter of the Year  

Chief Lance Moore of the Port Wentworth Fire Department presented the Fire Fighter of 
the Year Award to Brannen Wilson.  

6. ELECTIONS & APPOINTMENTS 

A. Appointment of Mayor Pro Tem  

Council Member Rufus Bright made a motion to appoint Council Member Thomas Barbee 
as Mayor Pro Tem. Seconded by Council Member Mark Stephens. Vote was unanimous.  

B. Interim City Attorney Employment Agreement 

Mayor Pro Tem Thomas Barbee made a motion to appoint Joseph B. Ervin of The Ervin 
Law Firm, P.C. as the Interim City Attorney. Seconded by Council Member Mark Stephens.  

RESULT: APPROVED [5 TO 0] 

MOVER: Thomas Barbee, Mayor Pro Tem   

SECONDER: Mark Stephens, Council Member 

AYES: Barbee, Smith, Stephens, Bright, Jones 

RECUSED: Nelson 

C. Accept the Resignation Letter Submitted by James L. Coursey, Jr. City Attorney 

RESULT: APPROVED [UNANIMOUS] 

MOVER: Mark Stephens, Council Member 

SECONDER: Rufus Bright, Council Member  

AYES: Barbee, Smith, Nelson, Stephens, Bright, Jones 

D. Appointment of Janet Hester and Margo Barbee to the Port Wentworth Planning 
Commission 

RESULT: APPROVED [5 TO 0] 

MOVER: Rufus Bright, Council Member  

SECONDER: Mark Stephens, Council Member 

AYES: Smith, Nelson, Stephens, Bright, Jones 

RECUSED: Barbee 

7. ADOPTION OF MINUTES 

A. City Council - Regular Meeting - Dec 16, 2021 6:30 PM 

RESULT: ACCEPTED [UNANIMOUS] 

MOVER: Glenn Jones, Council Member  

SECONDER: Thomas Barbee, Mayor Pro Tem   

AYES: Barbee, Smith, Nelson, Stephens, Bright, Jones 

B. Executive Session Minutes December 16, 2021 

Council Member Glenn Jones made a motion to adopt the minutes of the December 16, 

2021 Executive Session Meeting. Seconded by Mayor Pro Tem Thomas Barbee. Vote was 
unanimous.  

4.A

Packet Pg. 4

M
in

u
te

s 
A

cc
ep

ta
n

ce
: 

M
in

u
te

s 
o

f 
Ja

n
 2

7,
 2

02
2 

6:
30

 P
M

  (
A

d
o

p
ti

o
n

 o
f 

M
in

u
te

s)



Minutes City Council January 27, 2022 

City of Port Wentworth Generated: 2/7/2022 2:37 PM Page 3   

8. COMMUNICATIONS & PETITIONS 

A. City Manager Updates 

City Manager Edwin Booth updated Mayor and Council on the following matters: 
 

1. Waste Pro of South Carolina Contract being sold to Capital Waste Services, LLC (CWS, 
LLC). 
2. Growth the Development Services Department is experiencing which is the reason for 
the request to expand into an additional office suite.  
3. The need for an Impact Fee Resolution to complete the implementation of the impact 
fee.  
4. The need for additional staffing for the City, particularly maintenance workers to cover 

what is not listed in the ClearWater Solutions, LLC contract.  
5. The completion of Rice Hope pipe repairs south of Rice Creek.  
6. Closing of the Jimmy Deloach Parkway lift station and putting in a septic tank for a 
rough estimated cost of $6,000.00 as compared to a cost of $200,000.00 to repair the lift 
station.  

7. Closing of the Houston Museum burial grounds to new burials.  

8. The resignation of two Administrative Staff Members, the Director of Human 
Resources, Yolanda Irizarry and Municipal Clerk II, Amanda Ramos.  
9. Budget change of $115,000.00 for the Police Department to allow purchases needed to 
replace the GPS System in all City vehicles, police radios, and a new server/SQL License.  
10. That J.C. Lewis Healthcare will be in the parking lot of City Hall on Saturday, February 
5th to offer FREE COVID-19 testing, vaccinations and booster shots.  
11. ClearWater Solutions, LLC hired a company to pickup all illegal waste throughout the 

City.  

9. COMMITTEE REPORTS 

A. Committee Reports 

RESULT: APPROVED [UNANIMOUS] 

MOVER: Mark Stephens, Council Member 

SECONDER: Glenn Jones, Council Member  

AYES: Barbee, Smith, Nelson, Stephens, Bright, Jones 

10. CONSENT AGENDA 

RESULT: ADOPTED [UNANIMOUS] 

MOVER: Glenn Jones, Council Member  

SECONDER: Mark Stephens, Council Member 

AYES: Barbee, Smith, Nelson, Stephens, Bright, Jones 

A. Antrim Road Roadway Improvements Pay Request No. 1 

B. Red Robin Court Roadway Improvements Pay Request No. 2 

11. UNFINISHED BUSINESS 

A. Site Plan Review Application Lakeside at Rice Hope Phases 20-23 & 29A (Specific) 

4.A

Packet Pg. 5

M
in

u
te

s 
A

cc
ep

ta
n

ce
: 

M
in

u
te

s 
o

f 
Ja

n
 2

7,
 2

02
2 

6:
30

 P
M

  (
A

d
o

p
ti

o
n

 o
f 

M
in

u
te

s)



Minutes City Council January 27, 2022 

City of Port Wentworth Generated: 2/7/2022 2:37 PM Page 4   

RESULT: APPROVED [UNANIMOUS] 

MOVER: Glenn Jones, Council Member  

SECONDER: Thomas Barbee, Mayor Pro Tem   

AYES: Barbee, Smith, Nelson, Stephens, Bright, Jones 

B. Subdivision Application Lakeside Ph 23 Preliminary Plat 

RESULT: APPROVED [UNANIMOUS] 

MOVER: Glenn Jones, Council Member  

SECONDER: Thomas Barbee, Mayor Pro Tem   

AYES: Barbee, Smith, Nelson, Stephens, Bright, Jones 

C. Subdivision Application Lakeside Ph 29A Preliminary Plat 

RESULT: APPROVED [UNANIMOUS] 

MOVER: Glenn Jones, Council Member  

SECONDER: Thomas Barbee, Mayor Pro Tem   

AYES: Barbee, Smith, Nelson, Stephens, Bright, Jones 

12. NEW BUSINESS 

A. Proposal to Expand Office Space for the Development Services Department 

Council Member Glenn Jones made a motion to approve the expansion of the 
Development Services Department to Suites 302 and 303. Seconded by Mayor Pro Tem 

Thomas Barbee. Vote was unanimous.  

RESULT: APPROVED [UNANIMOUS] 

MOVER: Glenn Jones, Council Member  

SECONDER: Thomas Barbee, Mayor Pro Tem   

AYES: Barbee, Smith, Nelson, Stephens, Bright, Jones 

B. Alcoholic Beverage License Application Package Shop & Sunday Sales Rice Hope Liquors 

RESULT: APPROVED [UNANIMOUS] 

MOVER: Thomas Barbee, Mayor Pro Tem   

SECONDER: Rufus Bright, Council Member  

AYES: Barbee, Smith, Nelson, Stephens, Bright, Jones 

C. Alcoholic Beverage License Application Package Shop & Sunday Sales Port City Spirit 

RESULT: APPROVED [UNANIMOUS] 

MOVER: Thomas Barbee, Mayor Pro Tem   

SECONDER: Rufus Bright, Council Member  

AYES: Barbee, Smith, Nelson, Stephens, Bright, Jones 

D. Subdivision Application FINAL PLAT A Major Subdivision of Tract 1-1, The Plantation of 
Rice Hope 

4.A

Packet Pg. 6

M
in

u
te

s 
A

cc
ep

ta
n

ce
: 

M
in

u
te

s 
o

f 
Ja

n
 2

7,
 2

02
2 

6:
30

 P
M

  (
A

d
o

p
ti

o
n

 o
f 

M
in

u
te

s)



Minutes City Council January 27, 2022 

City of Port Wentworth Generated: 2/7/2022 2:37 PM Page 5   

Council Member Glenn Jones made a motion to approve the Subdivision Application Final 
Plat, contingent upon Mr. Paul Herrin's approval. Seconded by Council Member Rufus 

Bright. Vote was unanimous.  

RESULT: APPROVED [UNANIMOUS] 

MOVER: Glenn Jones, Council Member  

SECONDER: Rufus Bright, Council Member  

AYES: Barbee, Smith, Nelson, Stephens, Bright, Jones 

E. Site Plan Review Application StopNStor Expansion 8901 Hwy 21 (General) 

RESULT: APPROVED [UNANIMOUS] 

MOVER: Glenn Jones, Council Member  

SECONDER: Gabrielle Nelson, Council Member  

AYES: Barbee, Smith, Nelson, Stephens, Bright, Jones 

F. Zoning Map Amendment 7-0976-01-005 920 Hwy 30 1st Reading 

Josh Yellin was present to answer any questions of Mayor and Council.  
 
No action (vote) was taken on this agenda item as it was first reading.  

 
The following residents spoke in opposition of the project: 
LaRay Benton, 135 Saussy Road  
Trevor Ferguson, 6 Laurel Road  
Abraham Manor, 11 Laurel Road  
Janet Hester, 440 Meinhard Road  

Julius Robinson, 225 Grant Road  

G. Award the Hotel/Motel Contract to the Port Wentworth Chamber of Commerce 

Mayor Pro Tem Thomas Barbee made a motion to approve the award of the Hotel/Motel 
contract to the Port Wentworth Chamber of Commerce contingent upon a two (2) 
business day review by the newly appointed Interim City Attorney. Seconded by Council 
Member Jo Smith. Vote was unanimous.  

RESULT: APPROVED [UNANIMOUS] 

MOVER: Thomas Barbee, Mayor Pro Tem   

SECONDER: Jo Smith, Council Member  

AYES: Barbee, Smith, Nelson, Stephens, Bright, Jones 

H. Budget Adjustment to Hire Additional City Staff 

Council agreed to discuss this matter further during a scheduled City Council Workshop to 
be held on Wednesday, February 9, 2022 at 3:00 p.m.  

I. Award the GFAAC Contract 

Mayor Pro Tem Thomas Barbee made a motion to approve the award of the GFAAC 
Contract contingent upon a two (2) business day review by the newly appointed Interim 

City Attorney. Seconded by Council Member Rufus Bright. Vote was unanimous.  

4.A

Packet Pg. 7

M
in

u
te

s 
A

cc
ep

ta
n

ce
: 

M
in

u
te

s 
o

f 
Ja

n
 2

7,
 2

02
2 

6:
30

 P
M

  (
A

d
o

p
ti

o
n

 o
f 

M
in

u
te

s)



Minutes City Council January 27, 2022 

City of Port Wentworth Generated: 2/7/2022 2:37 PM Page 6   

RESULT: APPROVED [5 TO 0] 

MOVER: Thomas Barbee, Mayor Pro Tem   

SECONDER: Rufus Bright, Council Member  

AYES: Barbee, Nelson, Stephens, Bright, Jones 

RECUSED: Smith 

13. RESOLUTIONS/ORDINANCES/PROCLAMATIONS 

There were none to report.  

14. EXECUTIVE SESSION 

There were none to report.  

15. PUBLIC COMMENTS - REGISTERED SPEAKERS 

Dale Montgomery, 615 Meinhard Road, addressed Mayor and Council regarding drainage issues.  

Willie Johnson, 250 Meinhard Road, voiced his concerns regarding missed trash pickup at his 
sisters property, truck traffic on the road and the water runoff issues at the Promised Land 
Farm. 
David Brisbane, 749 Highway 30, discussed trash concerns. 
Chris Ruth, 202 Turnberry Street, expressed to Mayor and Council the problems the excessive 
travel of dump trucks up and down Crossgate Road are causing.  
Morris Glover, 110 Miller Park Circle, spoke on the recent burial of a Reynolds Family relative at 

the Houston Museum.  
Vince Vaughn, asked for a copy of the January 27, 2022 Regular City Council Meeting minutes 
and what employees the City will use to clean the ditches? He also stated that as a business 
man he has never seen someone so pushy to get a contract approved, as he referred to the 
GFAAC Contract.  

16. ADJOURNMENT 

There being no further business, Mayor Pro Tem Thomas Barbee made a motion to adjourn. 
Seconded by Council Member Mark Stephens. Vote was unanimous.  

. 

 

________________________________________________ 
Mayor Gary Norton 
 
 
The foregoing minutes are true and correct and approved by me on this ________ day of 
____________________________________, 2022. 
 
 
ATTEST: 
 
 
 
 
_________________________________________ 
Shanta M. Scarboro, Clerk of Council 

4.A

Packet Pg. 8

M
in

u
te

s 
A

cc
ep

ta
n

ce
: 

M
in

u
te

s 
o

f 
Ja

n
 2

7,
 2

02
2 

6:
30

 P
M

  (
A

d
o

p
ti

o
n

 o
f 

M
in

u
te

s)



 City Council Meeting: 03/24/22 07:00 PM 
 7224 GA Highway 21 Department: Development Services 
 Port Wentworth, GA  31407 Category: Purchase 
  Prepared By: Melanie Ellis 

 SCHEDULED Department Head: Brian Harvey 

  

 AGENDA ITEM (ID # 2628) DOC ID: 2628  

Updated: 3/16/2022 3:56 PM by Melanie Ellis  Page 1 

Antrim Road Roadway Improvements Pay Request No. 3 in 
the amount of $7,397.01 to Sandhill ALS Construction, Inc. 

Issue/Item: Antrim Road Roadway Improvements Pay Request No. 3 in the amount of 

$7,397.01 to Sandhill ALS Construction, Inc. 

 

Background: Antrim Road has been identified, by road condition standards established by 

the Georgia Department of Transportation, as City streets in need of repair and resurfacing.  

Trent Long, PE, T. R. Long Engineering, P. C., prepared plans and bid packets for the 

project. The contract was awarded to Sandhill ALS Construction, Inc., in the amount of 

$598,118.00. 

 

Facts and Findings: The contractor has completed a portion of the work in accordance 

with the contract. T.R. Long Engineering, P.C., has reviewed the applications, quantities, 

and values of work submitted by the contractor, and recommends payment in the amount 

of $78,572.87.  

 

Funding:  Budgeted Line Item 

 

Recommendation: Approval based upon the recommendation of T.R. Long. 
 
 
ATTACHMENTS: 

• Antrim Roadway Improvements Pay Request No. 3 March 2022 (PDF) 

7.A

Packet Pg. 9



7.A.a

Packet Pg. 10

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 A

n
tr

im
 R

o
ad

w
ay

 Im
p

ro
ve

m
en

ts
 P

ay
 R

eq
u

es
t 

N
o

. 3
 M

ar
ch

 2
02

2 
 (

26
28

 :
 A

n
tr

im
 R

o
ad

 R
o

ad
w

ay
 Im

p
ro

ve
m

en
ts

 P
ay

 R
eq

u
es

t 
N

o
. 3

)



7.A.a

Packet Pg. 11

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 A

n
tr

im
 R

o
ad

w
ay

 Im
p

ro
ve

m
en

ts
 P

ay
 R

eq
u

es
t 

N
o

. 3
 M

ar
ch

 2
02

2 
 (

26
28

 :
 A

n
tr

im
 R

o
ad

 R
o

ad
w

ay
 Im

p
ro

ve
m

en
ts

 P
ay

 R
eq

u
es

t 
N

o
. 3

)



7.A.a

Packet Pg. 12

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 A

n
tr

im
 R

o
ad

w
ay

 Im
p

ro
ve

m
en

ts
 P

ay
 R

eq
u

es
t 

N
o

. 3
 M

ar
ch

 2
02

2 
 (

26
28

 :
 A

n
tr

im
 R

o
ad

 R
o

ad
w

ay
 Im

p
ro

ve
m

en
ts

 P
ay

 R
eq

u
es

t 
N

o
. 3

)



7.A.a

Packet Pg. 13

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 A

n
tr

im
 R

o
ad

w
ay

 Im
p

ro
ve

m
en

ts
 P

ay
 R

eq
u

es
t 

N
o

. 3
 M

ar
ch

 2
02

2 
 (

26
28

 :
 A

n
tr

im
 R

o
ad

 R
o

ad
w

ay
 Im

p
ro

ve
m

en
ts

 P
ay

 R
eq

u
es

t 
N

o
. 3

)



 City Council Meeting: 03/24/22 07:00 PM 
 7224 GA Highway 21 Department: Development Services 
 Port Wentworth, GA  31407 Category: Purchase 
  Prepared By: Melanie Ellis 

 SCHEDULED Department Head: Brian Harvey 

  

 AGENDA ITEM (ID # 2629) DOC ID: 2629  

Updated: 3/16/2022 4:01 PM by Melanie Ellis  Page 1 

Red Robin Court Roadway Improvements Pay Request No. 4 
in the amount of $91,729.79 to Griffin Contracting Inc. 

Issue/Item: Red Robin Court Roadway Improvements Pay Request No. 4 in the amount of 

$91,729.79 to Griffin Contracting Inc. 

 

Background: Red Robin Court has been identified, by road condition standards established 

by the Georgia Department of Transportation, as City streets in need of repair and 

resurfacing.  Trent Long, PE, T. R. Long Engineering, P. C., prepared plans and bid packets 

for the project. The contract was awarded to Griffin Contracting, Inc., in the amount of 

$448,600.00. 

 

Facts and Findings: The contractor has completed a portion of the work in accordance 

with the contract. T.R. Long Engineering, P.C., has reviewed the applications, quantities, 

and values of work submitted by the contractor, and recommends payment in the amount 

of $43,855.20.  

 

Funding:  Budgeted Line Item 

 

Recommendation: Approval based upon the recommendation of T.R. Long. 
 
 
ATTACHMENTS: 

• Red Robin Ct Roadway Improvements Pay Request No. 4 March 2022 (PDF) 

7.B

Packet Pg. 14



7.B.a

Packet Pg. 15

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 R

ed
 R

o
b

in
 C

t 
R

o
ad

w
ay

 Im
p

ro
ve

m
en

ts
 P

ay
 R

eq
u

es
t 

N
o

. 4
 M

ar
ch

 2
02

2 
 (

26
29

 :
 R

ed
 R

o
b

in
 C

o
u

rt
 R

o
ad

w
ay

 Im
p

ro
ve

m
en

ts
 P

ay



7.B.a

Packet Pg. 16

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 R

ed
 R

o
b

in
 C

t 
R

o
ad

w
ay

 Im
p

ro
ve

m
en

ts
 P

ay
 R

eq
u

es
t 

N
o

. 4
 M

ar
ch

 2
02

2 
 (

26
29

 :
 R

ed
 R

o
b

in
 C

o
u

rt
 R

o
ad

w
ay

 Im
p

ro
ve

m
en

ts
 P

ay



7.B.a

Packet Pg. 17

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 R

ed
 R

o
b

in
 C

t 
R

o
ad

w
ay

 Im
p

ro
ve

m
en

ts
 P

ay
 R

eq
u

es
t 

N
o

. 4
 M

ar
ch

 2
02

2 
 (

26
29

 :
 R

ed
 R

o
b

in
 C

o
u

rt
 R

o
ad

w
ay

 Im
p

ro
ve

m
en

ts
 P

ay



7.B.a

Packet Pg. 18

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 R

ed
 R

o
b

in
 C

t 
R

o
ad

w
ay

 Im
p

ro
ve

m
en

ts
 P

ay
 R

eq
u

es
t 

N
o

. 4
 M

ar
ch

 2
02

2 
 (

26
29

 :
 R

ed
 R

o
b

in
 C

o
u

rt
 R

o
ad

w
ay

 Im
p

ro
ve

m
en

ts
 P

ay



 City Council Meeting: 03/24/22 07:00 PM 
 7224 GA Highway 21 Department: Public Services 
 Port Wentworth, GA  31407 Category: Agreement 
  Prepared By: Steve Davis 

 SCHEDULED Department Head: Steve Davis 

  

 AGENDA ITEM (ID # 2621) DOC ID: 2621  

Updated: 3/16/2022 3:23 PM by Steve Davis  Page 1 

DESIGN-BUILD MEMORANDUM OF UNDERSTANDING 
between the Georgia Department of Transportation and City 

of Port Wentworth 

Issue/Item: Request from the GDOT to enter into a Memorandum of Understanding (MOU) 

for the city owned water line within the proposed Houlihan bridge replacement project. 

 

Background: The GDOT has hired a contractor to design and build a new bridge to replace 

the Houlihan Bridge on State Route 25. The City owns a water line within the project limits 

that serves the Houlihan Boat Ramp property.  

 

Facts and Findings: The city owns a 2-inch water line along State Route 25 into the boat 

ramp property. Since the water line is within the project limits, the GDOT requires an MOU. 

It has been determined that the water line will not be in conflict with construction, but in the 

event the line is in conflict during construction, the GDOT will pay for the cost of relocating 

the line and the City agrees to have control over design (if necessary). 

 

Funding: N/A 

 

 

Recommendation: Approval based upon the recommendation of Clearwater Solutions, 

LLC. 
 
 
ATTACHMENTS: 

• MOU with GDOT Documents (PDF) 

9.B

Packet Pg. 19



9.B.a

Packet Pg. 20

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 M

O
U

 w
it

h
 G

D
O

T
 D

o
cu

m
en

ts
  (

26
21

 :
 M

O
U

 b
et

w
ee

n
 t

h
e 

G
D

O
T

 a
n

d
 P

o
rt

 W
en

tw
o

rt
h

)



9.B.a

Packet Pg. 21

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 M

O
U

 w
it

h
 G

D
O

T
 D

o
cu

m
en

ts
  (

26
21

 :
 M

O
U

 b
et

w
ee

n
 t

h
e 

G
D

O
T

 a
n

d
 P

o
rt

 W
en

tw
o

rt
h

)



9.B.a

Packet Pg. 22

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 M

O
U

 w
it

h
 G

D
O

T
 D

o
cu

m
en

ts
  (

26
21

 :
 M

O
U

 b
et

w
ee

n
 t

h
e 

G
D

O
T

 a
n

d
 P

o
rt

 W
en

tw
o

rt
h

)



9.B.a

Packet Pg. 23

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 M

O
U

 w
it

h
 G

D
O

T
 D

o
cu

m
en

ts
  (

26
21

 :
 M

O
U

 b
et

w
ee

n
 t

h
e 

G
D

O
T

 a
n

d
 P

o
rt

 W
en

tw
o

rt
h

)



9.B.a

Packet Pg. 24

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 M

O
U

 w
it

h
 G

D
O

T
 D

o
cu

m
en

ts
  (

26
21

 :
 M

O
U

 b
et

w
ee

n
 t

h
e 

G
D

O
T

 a
n

d
 P

o
rt

 W
en

tw
o

rt
h

)



9.B.a

Packet Pg. 25

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 M

O
U

 w
it

h
 G

D
O

T
 D

o
cu

m
en

ts
  (

26
21

 :
 M

O
U

 b
et

w
ee

n
 t

h
e 

G
D

O
T

 a
n

d
 P

o
rt

 W
en

tw
o

rt
h

)



9.B.a

Packet Pg. 26

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 M

O
U

 w
it

h
 G

D
O

T
 D

o
cu

m
en

ts
  (

26
21

 :
 M

O
U

 b
et

w
ee

n
 t

h
e 

G
D

O
T

 a
n

d
 P

o
rt

 W
en

tw
o

rt
h

)



 City Council Meeting: 03/24/22 07:00 PM 
 7224 GA Highway 21 Department: Public Services 
 Port Wentworth, GA  31407 Category: Purchase 
  Prepared By: Steve Davis 

 SCHEDULED Department Head: Steve Davis 

  

 AGENDA ITEM (ID # 2623) DOC ID: 2623  

Updated: 3/16/2022 3:31 PM by Steve Davis  Page 1 

Purchase Replacement of oxygen system from NOVAIR USA 
Corp. for the Waste Water Treatment Facility 

Issue/Item: Council approve purchase of replacement and installation for the panel and 

filters for the oxygen system at the Waste Water Treatment Facility from NOVAIR USA in 

the amount of $29,679.65. 

 

Background: In accordance with the operation permit for the Waste Water Treatment 

Facility, oxygen is introduced into the effluent before it is discharged. Unfortunately, the 

system has declined over the years and failed to provide adequate oxygen to meet the 

permit requirements. Temporarily, a manual bypass has been put into place to directly feed 

oxygen from portable canisters.  

 

Facts and Findings: A quote was obtained from NOVAIR USA in the amount of $29,679.65 

that will bring the system back on line. NOVAIR USA is a sole source provider of the system. 

 

Funding: Budgeted Line Item 

 

Recommendation: Approval based upon the recommendation of Clearwater Solutions, 

LLC. 
 
 
ATTACHMENTS: 

• NOVAIR Oxygen System Quote (PDF) 

9.C

Packet Pg. 27



9.C.a

Packet Pg. 28

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 N

O
V

A
IR

 O
xy

g
en

 S
ys

te
m

 Q
u

o
te

  (
26

23
 :

 O
xy

g
en

 s
ys

te
m

 N
O

V
A

IR
 U

S
A

 C
o

rp
. f

o
r 

th
e 

W
as

te
 W

at
er

 T
re

at
m

en
t)



9.C.a

Packet Pg. 29

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 N

O
V

A
IR

 O
xy

g
en

 S
ys

te
m

 Q
u

o
te

  (
26

23
 :

 O
xy

g
en

 s
ys

te
m

 N
O

V
A

IR
 U

S
A

 C
o

rp
. f

o
r 

th
e 

W
as

te
 W

at
er

 T
re

at
m

en
t)



 City Council Meeting: 03/24/22 07:00 PM 
 7224 GA Highway 21 Department: Fire Department 
 Port Wentworth, GA  31407 Category: Agreement 
  Prepared By: Steve Davis 

 SCHEDULED Department Head: Lance Moore 

  

 AGENDA ITEM (ID # 2634) DOC ID: 2634  

Updated: 3/22/2022 5:18 PM by Steve Davis  Page 1 

Agreement for Mutual Aid for 165th FD 

Issue/Item: MOU with 165th Air Wing Fire Department for Mutual Aid 

 

Background: Annual renewal 

 

Facts and Findings: Mutually beneficial agreement with no cost. 

 

Funding: N/A 

 

Recommendation: Approval 
 

 
ATTACHMENTS: 

• Airport MOU (PDF) 

9.D

Packet Pg. 30



9.D.a

Packet Pg. 31

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 A

ir
p

o
rt

 M
O

U
  (

26
34

 :
 A

g
re

em
en

t 
fo

r 
M

u
tu

al
 A

id
 f

o
r 

16
5t

h
 F

D
)



 City Council Meeting: 03/24/22 07:00 PM 
 7224 GA Highway 21 Department: Development Services 
 Port Wentworth, GA  31407 Category: Planning/Zoning Item 
  Prepared By: Melanie Ellis 

 SCHEDULED Department Head: Brian Harvey 

  

 AGENDA ITEM (ID # 2622) DOC ID: 2622  

Updated: 3/16/2022 3:28 PM by Melanie Ellis  Page 1 

Site Plan Review Application submitted by Paul Larner for 
PIN #:7-0906-04-091 & 7-0906-04-063 (Mulberry Blvd 

Extension) for a Specific Development Site Plan to Extend 
Mulberry Blvd in a M-P-O (Master Plan Overlay) Zoning 

District. 

Issue/Item: Site Plan Review Application submitted by Paul Larner for PIN #:7-0906-04-

091 & 7-0906-04-063 (Mulberry Blvd Extension) for a Specific Development Site Plan to 

Extend Mulberry Blvd in a M-P-O (Master Plan Overlay) Zoning District. 

 

Background: Currently Mulberry Blvd is a dead end road.   

 

Facts and Findings: The Applicant is proposing to extend Mulberry Blvd for future 

development. This application is currently under technical review by City Engineers, T.R. 

Long Engineering, P.C.   

 

Funding: N/A 

 

Recommendation: The Planning Commission will hear this application on Monday, March 

14, 2022 at 6:30 P.M. UPDATE: THE PLANNING COMMISSION VOTED UNANIMOUSLY 

TO APPROVE THE APPLICATION. 
 
 
ATTACHMENTS: 

• MULBERRY BLVD EXTENSION SPECIFIC SITE PLAN MAR 22 - Application (PDF) 

• MULBERRY BLVD EXTENSION SPECIFIC SITE PLAN MAR 22 - Timeline (DOCX) 

• MULBERRY BLVD EXTENSION SPECIFIC SITE PLAN MAR 22 - 1st Comment Letter TR Long 1.20.22 (PDF) 

• MULBERRY BLVD EXTENSION SPECIFIC SITE PLAN MAR 22 - 1st Return Comment Letter Pittman 2.28.22
 (PDF) 

• Planning Commission Minutes March 14, 2022 DRAFT (PDF) 

9.E

Packet Pg. 32



9.E.a

Packet Pg. 33

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 M

U
L

B
E

R
R

Y
 B

L
V

D
 E

X
T

E
N

S
IO

N
 S

P
E

C
IF

IC
 S

IT
E

 P
L

A
N

 M
A

R
 2

2 
- 

A
p

p
lic

at
io

n
  (

26
22

 :
 S

it
e 

P
la

n
 R

ev
ie

w
 (

S
p

ec
if

ic
) 

M
u

lb
er

ry
 B

lv
d



9.E.a

Packet Pg. 34

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 M

U
L

B
E

R
R

Y
 B

L
V

D
 E

X
T

E
N

S
IO

N
 S

P
E

C
IF

IC
 S

IT
E

 P
L

A
N

 M
A

R
 2

2 
- 

A
p

p
lic

at
io

n
  (

26
22

 :
 S

it
e 

P
la

n
 R

ev
ie

w
 (

S
p

ec
if

ic
) 

M
u

lb
er

ry
 B

lv
d



9.E.a

Packet Pg. 35

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 M

U
L

B
E

R
R

Y
 B

L
V

D
 E

X
T

E
N

S
IO

N
 S

P
E

C
IF

IC
 S

IT
E

 P
L

A
N

 M
A

R
 2

2 
- 

A
p

p
lic

at
io

n
  (

26
22

 :
 S

it
e 

P
la

n
 R

ev
ie

w
 (

S
p

ec
if

ic
) 

M
u

lb
er

ry
 B

lv
d



9.E.a

Packet Pg. 36

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 M

U
L

B
E

R
R

Y
 B

L
V

D
 E

X
T

E
N

S
IO

N
 S

P
E

C
IF

IC
 S

IT
E

 P
L

A
N

 M
A

R
 2

2 
- 

A
p

p
lic

at
io

n
  (

26
22

 :
 S

it
e 

P
la

n
 R

ev
ie

w
 (

S
p

ec
if

ic
) 

M
u

lb
er

ry
 B

lv
d



9.E.a

Packet Pg. 37

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 M

U
L

B
E

R
R

Y
 B

L
V

D
 E

X
T

E
N

S
IO

N
 S

P
E

C
IF

IC
 S

IT
E

 P
L

A
N

 M
A

R
 2

2 
- 

A
p

p
lic

at
io

n
  (

26
22

 :
 S

it
e 

P
la

n
 R

ev
ie

w
 (

S
p

ec
if

ic
) 

M
u

lb
er

ry
 B

lv
d



4715 

1 
 3/22/2022 5:30 PM 

Project Timeline 

Project Number: 220003  

Project Name: Mulberry Blvd Extension – Specific Site Plan 

Applicant / Engineer: Ray Pittman, Pittman Engineering 

Owner: Paul Larner 

City Review Engineer: TR Long Engineering 

 

• 12/22/2021 – Application received; complete 

• 1/7/2022 – sent packet over to Trent Long, TR Long Engineering, to start review.  

• 1/20/2022 – 1st review letter received from TR Long Engineering. Emailed to Jason Bryant & Ray 

Pittman.  

• 2/24/2022 – sent public hearing notice to Savannah Morning News 

• 2/25/2022 – Public hearing notice Ad published in Savannah Morning News 

• 2/25/2022 – public hearing notice letters mailed 

• 3/1/2022 – received 1st resubmittal from Pittman Engineering 

• 3/2/2022 – called & spoke to Jason Bryant and informed him I would need a PDF of his 

resubmittal to send to TR Long for review.  

• 3/2/2022 – PDF received. Forwarded to TR Long for review. 

9.E.b

Packet Pg. 38

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 M

U
L

B
E

R
R

Y
 B

L
V

D
 E

X
T

E
N

S
IO

N
 S

P
E

C
IF

IC
 S

IT
E

 P
L

A
N

 M
A

R
 2

2 
- 

T
im

el
in

e 
 (

26
22

 :
 S

it
e 

P
la

n
 R

ev
ie

w
 (

S
p

ec
if

ic
) 

M
u

lb
er

ry
 B

lv
d



 
 
January 20, 2022 
 
Mr. Brian Harvey 
City of Port Wentworth 
7224 Georgia Highway 21 
Port Wentworth, Georgia 31407 
 
Re:  Mulberry Boulevard Extension - Rice Hope Subdivision 

Port Wentworth, Georgia 
 
Dear Mr. Harvey, 
 
T. R. Long Engineering, P.C. has reviewed the “Mulberry Boulevard Extension - Rice Hope 
Subdivision” prepared by Pittman Engineering Company dated December 21, 2021. T. R. Long 
Engineering, P.C. offers the following comments with regards to this submittal: 
 

1. The plans do not include any benchmark or control point references.  Additionally, the 
north arrow does not indicate whether project is magnetic or state plane. 

2. The plans do not include any bearing and distances on the proposed right of way or on 
the centerline of the roadway. Please show layout information for the right of way and 
centerline. 

3. A boundary plat showing the new right-of-way will be required to be approved and 
recorded prior to close out of the project. 

4. According to the development manual the new section of roadway is required to have curb 
and gutter. 

5. The roadway design starting at station 7+00 to the temporary cul-de-sac does not meet 
any design standard. (i.e., cul-de-sac) Please provide a masterplan for this area so that 
the termination type for this roadway can be evaluated.  Roadways with a 90-degree bend 
as shown are not allowed.  The minimum roadway radius in 150-feet. 

6. The new roadway is being shown as 31’ wide and the side roadway is being shown at 22’ 
wide.  Please provide reasoning for the 31’ width of pavement. Also please provide 
justification for the roadway not being 24’ in width. 

7. The new roadway section is changing from a 2-lane roadway with an island to a 2-lane 
roadway without an island.  The taper length currently shown is not sufficient.  We estimate 
the taper should not be any less than 225 feet if the width is 24-feet wide. (15’ island 
width/2 x 30 mph = 225’) 

8. The driveway/roadway intersection located near station 2+75 has a centerline curve that 
extends into the Mulberry Boulevard right of way.  Intersections are encouraged be 90-
dregees to the centerline. Variances up to 5 degrees are acceptable. The layout as shown 
may result in vehicles entering the intersection at an angle greater than allowed. Please 
realign this intersection so that the intersecting angle is straight within the right of way. 

9. The plans show minimal striping and signage along the new roadway.  Include in the plans 
the necessary striping, signage and traffic devises required. 

9.E.c

Packet Pg. 39

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 M

U
L

B
E

R
R

Y
 B

L
V

D
 E

X
T

E
N

S
IO

N
 S

P
E

C
IF

IC
 S

IT
E

 P
L

A
N

 M
A

R
 2

2 
- 

1s
t 

C
o

m
m

en
t 

L
et

te
r 

T
R

 L
o

n
g

 1
.2

0.
22

  (
26

22
 :

 S
it

e 
P

la
n

 R
ev

ie
w



10. All roads shall have a 5’ shoulder with a maximum of 4:1 side slope.  Several of the storm 
profiles are not clear is this requirement is met. Please verify that the drainage pipes are 
designed so that the shoulder width and side slope are achieved. 

11. The concrete paving section located around station 0+75 leaves a small sliver of asphalt 
in the radius of the island that will be hard to install and maintain.  Please extend the new 
concrete paving to include the radius of the island. 

12. The plans show a cross walk at the road intersection.  Add handicap ramps where the 
sidewalk connects to the roadway.  Also verify the crosswalk meets ADA requirements 
and does not exceed the required 2.0% cross slope. 

13. Several notes indicate the reuse of existing pipe.  All pipe removed or demolished as part 
of construction shall not be reused and installation of all pipes shall be new. 

14. Several of the storm pipes are shown as 15” diameter.  The minimum pip size allowed is 
18” diameter.  Additionally, provide storm calculations for all the pipe crossings. 

15. Provide storm calculations for the existing 48” pipe crossing near station 0+50 to 
determine if the size is sufficient prior to constructing the new roadway.  Additionally show 
providing end treatments for each end of the 48” pipe. 

16. The storm pipes are shown with odd lengths.  Lengths should match nominal pipe lengths 
for concrete pipe if possible. 

17. No topographic information is shown for the near flared end section #2 to existing 
discharge ditch.  Provide additional topographical data for this area. 

18.  The existing force main is being extended across the City of Savannah Easement with 
new 10” force main for future use.  The new force main should include casing under the 
entire easement. 

19. The new force main is showing ending near the new right-of-way line.  Show the 
installation of a new cap or plug at the end of the line and a post to mark the location. 

20. The existing water is being extended across the City of Savannah Easement with new 12” 
water line for future use.  The new water should include casing under the entire easement.  
Additionally, review the size of the casing.  The casing pipe shown on the plans may be 
too small. 

21. The road length is longer than 700’ an only one new fire hydrant is currently shown.  Fire 
hydrant length should not exceed 600’.  Provide a minimum of one additional fire hydrant.  
Also, the location of the fire hydrant shown may change based on the future roadways 
shown in the masterplan.  The additional fire hydrant and currently proposed fire hydrant 
need to be shown at the right of way line.  

22. Currently one construction exit is shown on the erosion plans.  Please relocate the 
construction exit or provide an additional construction exit at the end of the existing asphalt 
roadway. 

23. A note concerning the water main indicates that the contractor needs to evaluate the depth 
of the water line. The engineer should evaluate the depth of the waterline. Please update 
this note so that the engineer is in control and that the city is notified of any changes and 
that the city has time to review the change prior to construction. 

24. All unsuitable soil in roadway and/or under utilities, shall be removed and replaced with 
structural fill. Please update the plan to indicate this requirement. 

 
Should you have any questions, comments, or need additional information please contact us. 
 
Sincerely, 
 
 
 
Trent R. Long, P.E. 

9.E.c

Packet Pg. 40

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 M

U
L

B
E

R
R

Y
 B

L
V

D
 E

X
T

E
N

S
IO

N
 S

P
E

C
IF

IC
 S

IT
E

 P
L

A
N

 M
A

R
 2

2 
- 

1s
t 

C
o

m
m

en
t 

L
et

te
r 

T
R

 L
o

n
g

 1
.2

0.
22

  (
26

22
 :

 S
it

e 
P

la
n

 R
ev

ie
w



9.E.d

Packet Pg. 41

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 M

U
L

B
E

R
R

Y
 B

L
V

D
 E

X
T

E
N

S
IO

N
 S

P
E

C
IF

IC
 S

IT
E

 P
L

A
N

 M
A

R
 2

2 
- 

1s
t 

R
et

u
rn

 C
o

m
m

en
t 

L
et

te
r 

P
it

tm
an

 2
.2

8.
22

  (
26

22
 :

 S
it

e 
P

la
n



9.E.d

Packet Pg. 42

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 M

U
L

B
E

R
R

Y
 B

L
V

D
 E

X
T

E
N

S
IO

N
 S

P
E

C
IF

IC
 S

IT
E

 P
L

A
N

 M
A

R
 2

2 
- 

1s
t 

R
et

u
rn

 C
o

m
m

en
t 

L
et

te
r 

P
it

tm
an

 2
.2

8.
22

  (
26

22
 :

 S
it

e 
P

la
n



9.E.d

Packet Pg. 43

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 M

U
L

B
E

R
R

Y
 B

L
V

D
 E

X
T

E
N

S
IO

N
 S

P
E

C
IF

IC
 S

IT
E

 P
L

A
N

 M
A

R
 2

2 
- 

1s
t 

R
et

u
rn

 C
o

m
m

en
t 

L
et

te
r 

P
it

tm
an

 2
.2

8.
22

  (
26

22
 :

 S
it

e 
P

la
n



9.E.d

Packet Pg. 44

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 M

U
L

B
E

R
R

Y
 B

L
V

D
 E

X
T

E
N

S
IO

N
 S

P
E

C
IF

IC
 S

IT
E

 P
L

A
N

 M
A

R
 2

2 
- 

1s
t 

R
et

u
rn

 C
o

m
m

en
t 

L
et

te
r 

P
it

tm
an

 2
.2

8.
22

  (
26

22
 :

 S
it

e 
P

la
n



9.E.d

Packet Pg. 45

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 M

U
L

B
E

R
R

Y
 B

L
V

D
 E

X
T

E
N

S
IO

N
 S

P
E

C
IF

IC
 S

IT
E

 P
L

A
N

 M
A

R
 2

2 
- 

1s
t 

R
et

u
rn

 C
o

m
m

en
t 

L
et

te
r 

P
it

tm
an

 2
.2

8.
22

  (
26

22
 :

 S
it

e 
P

la
n



9.E.d

Packet Pg. 46

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 M

U
L

B
E

R
R

Y
 B

L
V

D
 E

X
T

E
N

S
IO

N
 S

P
E

C
IF

IC
 S

IT
E

 P
L

A
N

 M
A

R
 2

2 
- 

1s
t 

R
et

u
rn

 C
o

m
m

en
t 

L
et

te
r 

P
it

tm
an

 2
.2

8.
22

  (
26

22
 :

 S
it

e 
P

la
n



 

 

CITY OF PORT WENTWORTH 
PLANNING COMMISSION 

  MARCH 14, 2022 

 

 

  

 Council Meeting Room Regular Meeting 6:30 PM 

7224 GA HIGHWAY 21 
PORT WENTWORTH, GA  31407 

City of Port Wentworth Generated: 3/15/2022 10:53 AM Page 1   

1. CALL MEETING TO ORDER 

Chairman CJ Neesmith called the meeting to order.  

2. PRAYER AND PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 

Commissioner Herrin led the Prayer and Pledge of Allegiance.  

3. ROLL CALL - SECRETARY 

 

Attendee Name Title Status Arrived 

Bill Herrin Planning Commissioner Present  

Rosetta Franklin Planning Commissioner Present  

Wanda Rollf Planning Commissioner Present  

Lauree Morris Planning Commissioner Absent  

CJ Neesmith Planning Commissioner Present  

Janet Hester Planning Commissioner Present  

Jeff Sopson Planning Commissioner Present  

Brian Harvey Director of Development Services Present  

Melanie Ellis Building Inspector Present  

4. APPROVAL OF AGENDA 

1. Approval of Agenda 

Agenda was approved with the removal of item 6.A due to the applicant withdrawing the 
application.  

RESULT: ADOPTED [UNANIMOUS] 

MOVER: Bill Herrin, Planning Commissioner 

SECONDER: Rosetta Franklin, Planning Commissioner 

AYES: Herrin, Franklin, Rollf, Hester, Sopson 

ABSENT: Morris 

5. ADOPTION OF MINUTES 

A. Planning Commission - Regular Meeting - Feb 14, 2022 6:30 PM 

9.E.e

Packet Pg. 47

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 P

la
n

n
in

g
 C

o
m

m
is

si
o

n
 M

in
u

te
s 

M
ar

ch
 1

4,
 2

02
2 

D
R

A
F

T
  (

26
22

 :
 S

it
e 

P
la

n
 R

ev
ie

w
 (

S
p

ec
if

ic
) 

M
u

lb
er

ry
 B

lv
d

 E
xt

en
si

o
n

 7
-0

90
6-

04
-0

91
 &



Minutes Planning Commission March 14, 2022 

City of Port Wentworth Generated: 3/15/2022 10:53 AM Page 2   

RESULT: ACCEPTED [UNANIMOUS] 

MOVER: Rosetta Franklin, Planning Commissioner 

SECONDER: Bill Herrin, Planning Commissioner 

AYES: Herrin, Franklin, Rollf, Hester, Sopson 

ABSENT: Morris 

6. ZONING MAP AMENDMENTS (REZONING) 

A. Zoning Map Amendment Application submitted by Charles Teel, Hunter, Maclean, Exley & 
Dunn, P.C., on behalf of Lula Ghyll Roberts Cheathem for PIN # 7-0975-02-010 (Highway 
21) to Rezone from R-A (Residential Agriculture) to P-C-1 (Planned Neighborhood 
Business) Zoning District for the purpose of a Motorcycle Repair & Parts Shop. 

Application withdrawn by Applicant. 

RESULT: WITHDRAWN [UNANIMOUS] 

MOVER: Bill Herrin, Planning Commissioner 

SECONDER: Rosetta Franklin, Planning Commissioner 

AYES: Herrin, Franklin, Rollf, Hester, Sopson 

ABSENT: Morris 

7. ZONING TEXT AMENDMENTS (ORDINANCES) 

8. SITE PLAN/SUBDIVISION APPROVAL 

A. Subdivision Application submitted by Lamar Mercer, PE., Thomas & Hutton Engineering 
Inc., on behalf of BEP Rice Hope, LLC., for PIN # 7-0906-04-069 (100 Lakeside Blvd) 
located in a M-P-O (Master Plan Overlay) Zoning District for a Final Plat of a Major 
Subdivision (Parkside Phase 1D-2 ) for the purpose of Single-Family Homes 

The applicant, Lamar Mercer, was present. Mr. Mercer gave a brief overview of the 
project and offered to answer any questions. There were no questions from the 
Commission. There were no public comments. Commissioner Franklin made a motion to 

approve the application. Commissioner Herrin seconded the motion to approve. The vote 
was unanimous.  

RESULT: APPROVED [UNANIMOUS] 

MOVER: Rosetta Franklin, Planning Commissioner 

SECONDER: Bill Herrin, Planning Commissioner 

AYES: Herrin, Franklin, Rollf, Hester, Sopson 

ABSENT: Morris 

B. Site Plan Review Application submitted by Paul Larner for PIN #:7-0906-04-091 & 7-
0906-04-063 (Mulberry Blvd Extension) for a Specific Development Site Plan to Extend 

Mulberry Blvd in a M-P-O (Master Plan Overlay) Zoning District. 

Ray Pittman was present on behalf of the applicant. Mr. Pittman gave a brief overview of 
the project and offered to answer any questions. There were no questions from the 
Commission. There were no public comments. Commissioner Franklin made a motion to 
approve the application. Commissioner Herrin seconded the motion to approve. The vote 

was unanimous.  

9.E.e

Packet Pg. 48

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 P

la
n

n
in

g
 C

o
m

m
is

si
o

n
 M

in
u

te
s 

M
ar

ch
 1

4,
 2

02
2 

D
R

A
F

T
  (

26
22

 :
 S

it
e 

P
la

n
 R

ev
ie

w
 (

S
p

ec
if

ic
) 

M
u

lb
er

ry
 B

lv
d

 E
xt

en
si

o
n

 7
-0

90
6-

04
-0

91
 &



Minutes Planning Commission March 14, 2022 

City of Port Wentworth Generated: 3/15/2022 10:53 AM Page 3   

RESULT: APPROVED [UNANIMOUS] 

MOVER: Rosetta Franklin, Planning Commissioner 

SECONDER: Bill Herrin, Planning Commissioner 

AYES: Herrin, Franklin, Rollf, Hester, Sopson 

ABSENT: Morris 

C. Subdivision Application submitted by Jessica Vick, Roberts Civil Engineering, LLC., on 
behalf of Landmark 24 Homes of Savannah, LLC., for PIN # 7-0906-01-031 (Miller Park 
Circle) located in a P-R-M (Planned Residential Multi-Family) Zoning District for a 
Preliminary Plat of a Major Subdivision (Rice Creek Tract C-2 Phase V) for the purpose of 
Single-Family Homes 

Kennon Strowd was present on behalf of the applicant. Mr. Strowd gave a brief overview 

of the project and offered to answer any questions. There were no questions from the 
Commission. There were no public comments. Commissioner Franklin made a motion to 
approve the application. Commissioner Herrin seconded the motion to approve. The vote 

was unanimous.  

RESULT: APPROVED [UNANIMOUS] 

MOVER: Rosetta Franklin, Planning Commissioner 

SECONDER: Bill Herrin, Planning Commissioner 

AYES: Herrin, Franklin, Rollf, Hester, Sopson 

ABSENT: Morris 

D. Subdivision Application submitted by Jessica Vick, Roberts Civil Engineering, LLC., on 
behalf of Landmark 24 Homes of Savannah, LLC., for PIN # 7-0906-01-031 (Miller Park 
Circle) located in a P-R-M (Planned Residential Multi-Family) Zoning District for a 
Preliminary Plat of a Major Subdivision (Rice Creek Tract C-1 Phase VI) for the purpose of 
Single-Family Homes 

Kennon Strowd was present on behalf of the applicant. Mr. Strowd gave a brief overview 
of the project and offered to answer any questions. There were no questions from the 
Commission. There were no public comments. Commissioner Franklin made a motion to 
approve the application. Commissioner Herrin seconded the motion to approve. The vote 
was unanimous.  

RESULT: APPROVED [UNANIMOUS] 

MOVER: Rosetta Franklin, Planning Commissioner 

SECONDER: Bill Herrin, Planning Commissioner 

AYES: Herrin, Franklin, Rollf, Hester, Sopson 

ABSENT: Morris 

9. NEW BUSINESS 

1. A Resolution of the Mayor and City Council of the City of Port Wentworth to Amend the 
Zoning Ordinance Regarding the Approval of Final Plats 

Mr. Harvey gave a overview of the resolution. Commissioner Herrin asked if the Planning 

Commission would be covered under the City's insurance when making decisions. Mr. 
Harvey stated he would have to check.  
-Public Hearing 
--Murray Marshal spoke in favor of the resolution.  
Commissioner Franklin made a motion to approve. Commissioner Herrin seconded the 
motion to approve. Commissioners Franklin, Herrin, Rollf, and Sopson voted Yay. 

Commissioner Hester voted Nay. The motion passes 4-1. 

9.E.e

Packet Pg. 49

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 P

la
n

n
in

g
 C

o
m

m
is

si
o

n
 M

in
u

te
s 

M
ar

ch
 1

4,
 2

02
2 

D
R

A
F

T
  (

26
22

 :
 S

it
e 

P
la

n
 R

ev
ie

w
 (

S
p

ec
if

ic
) 

M
u

lb
er

ry
 B

lv
d

 E
xt

en
si

o
n

 7
-0

90
6-

04
-0

91
 &



Minutes Planning Commission March 14, 2022 

City of Port Wentworth Generated: 3/15/2022 10:53 AM Page 4   

RESULT: APPROVED [4 TO 1] 

MOVER: Rosetta Franklin, Planning Commissioner 

SECONDER: Bill Herrin, Planning Commissioner 

AYES: Herrin, Franklin, Rollf, Hester 

NAYS: Sopson 

ABSENT: Morris 

10. ADJOURNMENT 

A. Adjournment 

RESULT: ADOPTED [UNANIMOUS] 

MOVER: Bill Herrin, Planning Commissioner 

SECONDER: Rosetta Franklin, Planning Commissioner 

AYES: Herrin, Franklin, Rollf, Hester, Sopson 

ABSENT: Morris 

. 

 

________________________________________________ 
Chairman 
 
 
The foregoing minutes are true and correct and approved by me on this ________ day of 
____________________________________, 2022. 
 
 
 
 
_________________________________________ 
Secretary 

9.E.e

Packet Pg. 50

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 P

la
n

n
in

g
 C

o
m

m
is

si
o

n
 M

in
u

te
s 

M
ar

ch
 1

4,
 2

02
2 

D
R

A
F

T
  (

26
22

 :
 S

it
e 

P
la

n
 R

ev
ie

w
 (

S
p

ec
if

ic
) 

M
u

lb
er

ry
 B

lv
d

 E
xt

en
si

o
n

 7
-0

90
6-

04
-0

91
 &



 City Council Meeting: 03/24/22 07:00 PM 
 7224 GA Highway 21 Department: Development Services 
 Port Wentworth, GA  31407 Category: Planning/Zoning Item 
  Prepared By: Melanie Ellis 

 SCHEDULED Department Head: Brian Harvey 

  

 AGENDA ITEM (ID # 2624) DOC ID: 2624  

Updated: 3/16/2022 3:32 PM by Melanie Ellis  Page 1 

Subdivision Application submitted by Lamar Mercer, PE., 
Thomas & Hutton Engineering Inc., on behalf of BEP Rice 
Hope, LLC., for PIN # 7-0906-04-069 (100 Lakeside Blvd) 

located in a M-P-O (Master Plan Overlay) Zoning District for a 
Final Plat of a Major Subdivision (Parkside Phase 1D-2 ) for 

the purpose of Single-Family Homes 

Issue/Item: Subdivision Application submitted by Lamar Mercer, PE., Thomas & Hutton 

Engineering Inc., on behalf of BEP Rice Hope, LLC., for PIN # 7-0906-04-069 (100 Lakeside 

Blvd) located in a M-P-O (Master Plan Overlay) Zoning District for a Final Plat of a Major 

Subdivision (Parkside Phase 1D-2 ) for the purpose of Single-Family Homes 

 

Background: This is the Final Plat submittal for Parkside Phase 1D-2 of the Rice Hope 

Subdivision. Parkside Phase 1D-2 includes fifteen (15) single family lots on approximately 

2.9 acres. The lots will be accessed off Cypress Loop. The subdivision is served by public 

water and sewer utilities.  

 

Facts and Findings: The construction of this phase complies with the City of Port 

Wentworth Development Standards, and all requirements of the Subdivision Ordinances 

have been met. 

 

Funding: N/A 

 

Recommendation: The Planning Commission will hear this application on Monday, March 

14, 2022 at 6:30 P.M. / UPDATE: THE PLANNING COMMISSION VOTED 

UNANIMOUSLY TO APPROVE THE APPLICATION. 
 
 
ATTACHMENTS: 

• PARKSIDE PH 1D-2 FINAL PLAT MAR 22 - Application (PDF) 

• PARKSIDE PH 1D-2 FINAL PLAT MAR 22 - Timeline (DOCX) 

• PARKSIDE PH 1D-2 FINAL PLAT MAR 22 - Final Plat (PDF) 

• Planning Commission Minutes March 14, 2022 DRAFT (PDF) 

9.F

Packet Pg. 51



9.F.a

Packet Pg. 52

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 P

A
R

K
S

ID
E

 P
H

 1
D

-2
 F

IN
A

L
 P

L
A

T
 M

A
R

 2
2 

- 
A

p
p

lic
at

io
n

  (
26

24
 :

 S
u

b
d

iv
is

io
n

 A
p

p
lic

at
io

n
 P

ar
ks

id
e 

P
h

as
e 

1D
-2

 F
in

al
 P

la
t 

M
A

R
 2

2)



9.F.a

Packet Pg. 53

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 P

A
R

K
S

ID
E

 P
H

 1
D

-2
 F

IN
A

L
 P

L
A

T
 M

A
R

 2
2 

- 
A

p
p

lic
at

io
n

  (
26

24
 :

 S
u

b
d

iv
is

io
n

 A
p

p
lic

at
io

n
 P

ar
ks

id
e 

P
h

as
e 

1D
-2

 F
in

al
 P

la
t 

M
A

R
 2

2)



9.F.a

Packet Pg. 54

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 P

A
R

K
S

ID
E

 P
H

 1
D

-2
 F

IN
A

L
 P

L
A

T
 M

A
R

 2
2 

- 
A

p
p

lic
at

io
n

  (
26

24
 :

 S
u

b
d

iv
is

io
n

 A
p

p
lic

at
io

n
 P

ar
ks

id
e 

P
h

as
e 

1D
-2

 F
in

al
 P

la
t 

M
A

R
 2

2)



9.F.a

Packet Pg. 55

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 P

A
R

K
S

ID
E

 P
H

 1
D

-2
 F

IN
A

L
 P

L
A

T
 M

A
R

 2
2 

- 
A

p
p

lic
at

io
n

  (
26

24
 :

 S
u

b
d

iv
is

io
n

 A
p

p
lic

at
io

n
 P

ar
ks

id
e 

P
h

as
e 

1D
-2

 F
in

al
 P

la
t 

M
A

R
 2

2)



4722 

1 
 3/22/2022 5:30 PM 

Project Timeline 

Project Number: 220004 

Project Name: Parkside Phase 1D-2 – Final Plat 

Applicant / Engineer: Lamar Mercer, Thomas & Hutton 

Owner: BEP Rice Hope 

City Staff Review: Omar Senati  

 

• 1/4/2022 – Application Received; Incomplete – need PIN number to be verified, pdf, 15 half size 

and 3 full size copies. 

•  1/4/2022 – sent email to Lamar Mercer for missing information.  

• 1/6/2022 – missing information received 

• 2/11/2022 – Omar sent 1st review comments to Paul Larner & Thomas & Hutton.  

• 2/24/2022 – public hearing notice sent to Savannah Morning News 

• 2/25/2022 – public hearing notice published in the Savannah Morning News 

• 2/25/2022 – Public hearing notice letters mailed.  

9.F.b

Packet Pg. 56

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 P

A
R

K
S

ID
E

 P
H

 1
D

-2
 F

IN
A

L
 P

L
A

T
 M

A
R

 2
2 

- 
T

im
el

in
e 

 (
26

24
 :

 S
u

b
d

iv
is

io
n

 A
p

p
lic

at
io

n
 P

ar
ks

id
e 

P
h

as
e 

1D
-2

 F
in

al
 P

la
t 

M
A

R
 2

2)



9.F.c

Packet Pg. 57

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 P

A
R

K
S

ID
E

 P
H

 1
D

-2
 F

IN
A

L
 P

L
A

T
 M

A
R

 2
2 

- 
F

in
al

 P
la

t 
 (

26
24

 :
 S

u
b

d
iv

is
io

n
 A

p
p

lic
at

io
n

 P
ar

ks
id

e 
P

h
as

e 
1D

-2
 F

in
al

 P
la

t 
M

A
R

 2
2)



 

 

CITY OF PORT WENTWORTH 
PLANNING COMMISSION 

  MARCH 14, 2022 

 

 

  

 Council Meeting Room Regular Meeting 6:30 PM 

7224 GA HIGHWAY 21 
PORT WENTWORTH, GA  31407 

City of Port Wentworth Generated: 3/15/2022 10:53 AM Page 1   

1. CALL MEETING TO ORDER 

Chairman CJ Neesmith called the meeting to order.  

2. PRAYER AND PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 

Commissioner Herrin led the Prayer and Pledge of Allegiance.  

3. ROLL CALL - SECRETARY 

 

Attendee Name Title Status Arrived 

Bill Herrin Planning Commissioner Present  

Rosetta Franklin Planning Commissioner Present  

Wanda Rollf Planning Commissioner Present  

Lauree Morris Planning Commissioner Absent  

CJ Neesmith Planning Commissioner Present  

Janet Hester Planning Commissioner Present  

Jeff Sopson Planning Commissioner Present  

Brian Harvey Director of Development Services Present  

Melanie Ellis Building Inspector Present  

4. APPROVAL OF AGENDA 

1. Approval of Agenda 

Agenda was approved with the removal of item 6.A due to the applicant withdrawing the 
application.  

RESULT: ADOPTED [UNANIMOUS] 

MOVER: Bill Herrin, Planning Commissioner 

SECONDER: Rosetta Franklin, Planning Commissioner 

AYES: Herrin, Franklin, Rollf, Hester, Sopson 

ABSENT: Morris 

5. ADOPTION OF MINUTES 

A. Planning Commission - Regular Meeting - Feb 14, 2022 6:30 PM 

9.F.d

Packet Pg. 58

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 P

la
n

n
in

g
 C

o
m

m
is

si
o

n
 M

in
u

te
s 

M
ar

ch
 1

4,
 2

02
2 

D
R

A
F

T
  (

26
24

 :
 S

u
b

d
iv

is
io

n
 A

p
p

lic
at

io
n

 P
ar

ks
id

e 
P

h
as

e 
1D

-2
 F

in
al

 P
la

t 
M

A
R

 2
2)



Minutes Planning Commission March 14, 2022 

City of Port Wentworth Generated: 3/15/2022 10:53 AM Page 2   

RESULT: ACCEPTED [UNANIMOUS] 

MOVER: Rosetta Franklin, Planning Commissioner 

SECONDER: Bill Herrin, Planning Commissioner 

AYES: Herrin, Franklin, Rollf, Hester, Sopson 

ABSENT: Morris 

6. ZONING MAP AMENDMENTS (REZONING) 

A. Zoning Map Amendment Application submitted by Charles Teel, Hunter, Maclean, Exley & 
Dunn, P.C., on behalf of Lula Ghyll Roberts Cheathem for PIN # 7-0975-02-010 (Highway 
21) to Rezone from R-A (Residential Agriculture) to P-C-1 (Planned Neighborhood 
Business) Zoning District for the purpose of a Motorcycle Repair & Parts Shop. 

Application withdrawn by Applicant. 

RESULT: WITHDRAWN [UNANIMOUS] 

MOVER: Bill Herrin, Planning Commissioner 

SECONDER: Rosetta Franklin, Planning Commissioner 

AYES: Herrin, Franklin, Rollf, Hester, Sopson 

ABSENT: Morris 

7. ZONING TEXT AMENDMENTS (ORDINANCES) 

8. SITE PLAN/SUBDIVISION APPROVAL 

A. Subdivision Application submitted by Lamar Mercer, PE., Thomas & Hutton Engineering 
Inc., on behalf of BEP Rice Hope, LLC., for PIN # 7-0906-04-069 (100 Lakeside Blvd) 
located in a M-P-O (Master Plan Overlay) Zoning District for a Final Plat of a Major 
Subdivision (Parkside Phase 1D-2 ) for the purpose of Single-Family Homes 

The applicant, Lamar Mercer, was present. Mr. Mercer gave a brief overview of the 
project and offered to answer any questions. There were no questions from the 
Commission. There were no public comments. Commissioner Franklin made a motion to 

approve the application. Commissioner Herrin seconded the motion to approve. The vote 
was unanimous.  

RESULT: APPROVED [UNANIMOUS] 

MOVER: Rosetta Franklin, Planning Commissioner 

SECONDER: Bill Herrin, Planning Commissioner 

AYES: Herrin, Franklin, Rollf, Hester, Sopson 

ABSENT: Morris 

B. Site Plan Review Application submitted by Paul Larner for PIN #:7-0906-04-091 & 7-
0906-04-063 (Mulberry Blvd Extension) for a Specific Development Site Plan to Extend 

Mulberry Blvd in a M-P-O (Master Plan Overlay) Zoning District. 

Ray Pittman was present on behalf of the applicant. Mr. Pittman gave a brief overview of 
the project and offered to answer any questions. There were no questions from the 
Commission. There were no public comments. Commissioner Franklin made a motion to 
approve the application. Commissioner Herrin seconded the motion to approve. The vote 

was unanimous.  

9.F.d

Packet Pg. 59

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 P

la
n

n
in

g
 C

o
m

m
is

si
o

n
 M

in
u

te
s 

M
ar

ch
 1

4,
 2

02
2 

D
R

A
F

T
  (

26
24

 :
 S

u
b

d
iv

is
io

n
 A

p
p

lic
at

io
n

 P
ar

ks
id

e 
P

h
as

e 
1D

-2
 F

in
al

 P
la

t 
M

A
R

 2
2)



Minutes Planning Commission March 14, 2022 

City of Port Wentworth Generated: 3/15/2022 10:53 AM Page 3   

RESULT: APPROVED [UNANIMOUS] 

MOVER: Rosetta Franklin, Planning Commissioner 

SECONDER: Bill Herrin, Planning Commissioner 

AYES: Herrin, Franklin, Rollf, Hester, Sopson 

ABSENT: Morris 

C. Subdivision Application submitted by Jessica Vick, Roberts Civil Engineering, LLC., on 
behalf of Landmark 24 Homes of Savannah, LLC., for PIN # 7-0906-01-031 (Miller Park 
Circle) located in a P-R-M (Planned Residential Multi-Family) Zoning District for a 
Preliminary Plat of a Major Subdivision (Rice Creek Tract C-2 Phase V) for the purpose of 
Single-Family Homes 

Kennon Strowd was present on behalf of the applicant. Mr. Strowd gave a brief overview 

of the project and offered to answer any questions. There were no questions from the 
Commission. There were no public comments. Commissioner Franklin made a motion to 
approve the application. Commissioner Herrin seconded the motion to approve. The vote 

was unanimous.  

RESULT: APPROVED [UNANIMOUS] 

MOVER: Rosetta Franklin, Planning Commissioner 

SECONDER: Bill Herrin, Planning Commissioner 

AYES: Herrin, Franklin, Rollf, Hester, Sopson 

ABSENT: Morris 

D. Subdivision Application submitted by Jessica Vick, Roberts Civil Engineering, LLC., on 
behalf of Landmark 24 Homes of Savannah, LLC., for PIN # 7-0906-01-031 (Miller Park 
Circle) located in a P-R-M (Planned Residential Multi-Family) Zoning District for a 
Preliminary Plat of a Major Subdivision (Rice Creek Tract C-1 Phase VI) for the purpose of 
Single-Family Homes 

Kennon Strowd was present on behalf of the applicant. Mr. Strowd gave a brief overview 
of the project and offered to answer any questions. There were no questions from the 
Commission. There were no public comments. Commissioner Franklin made a motion to 
approve the application. Commissioner Herrin seconded the motion to approve. The vote 
was unanimous.  

RESULT: APPROVED [UNANIMOUS] 

MOVER: Rosetta Franklin, Planning Commissioner 

SECONDER: Bill Herrin, Planning Commissioner 

AYES: Herrin, Franklin, Rollf, Hester, Sopson 

ABSENT: Morris 

9. NEW BUSINESS 

1. A Resolution of the Mayor and City Council of the City of Port Wentworth to Amend the 
Zoning Ordinance Regarding the Approval of Final Plats 

Mr. Harvey gave a overview of the resolution. Commissioner Herrin asked if the Planning 

Commission would be covered under the City's insurance when making decisions. Mr. 
Harvey stated he would have to check.  
-Public Hearing 
--Murray Marshal spoke in favor of the resolution.  
Commissioner Franklin made a motion to approve. Commissioner Herrin seconded the 
motion to approve. Commissioners Franklin, Herrin, Rollf, and Sopson voted Yay. 

Commissioner Hester voted Nay. The motion passes 4-1. 

9.F.d

Packet Pg. 60

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 P

la
n

n
in

g
 C

o
m

m
is

si
o

n
 M

in
u

te
s 

M
ar

ch
 1

4,
 2

02
2 

D
R

A
F

T
  (

26
24

 :
 S

u
b

d
iv

is
io

n
 A

p
p

lic
at

io
n

 P
ar

ks
id

e 
P

h
as

e 
1D

-2
 F

in
al

 P
la

t 
M

A
R

 2
2)



Minutes Planning Commission March 14, 2022 

City of Port Wentworth Generated: 3/15/2022 10:53 AM Page 4   

RESULT: APPROVED [4 TO 1] 

MOVER: Rosetta Franklin, Planning Commissioner 

SECONDER: Bill Herrin, Planning Commissioner 

AYES: Herrin, Franklin, Rollf, Hester 

NAYS: Sopson 

ABSENT: Morris 

10. ADJOURNMENT 

A. Adjournment 

RESULT: ADOPTED [UNANIMOUS] 

MOVER: Bill Herrin, Planning Commissioner 

SECONDER: Rosetta Franklin, Planning Commissioner 

AYES: Herrin, Franklin, Rollf, Hester, Sopson 

ABSENT: Morris 

. 

 

________________________________________________ 
Chairman 
 
 
The foregoing minutes are true and correct and approved by me on this ________ day of 
____________________________________, 2022. 
 
 
 
 
_________________________________________ 
Secretary 

9.F.d

Packet Pg. 61

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 P

la
n

n
in

g
 C

o
m

m
is

si
o

n
 M

in
u

te
s 

M
ar

ch
 1

4,
 2

02
2 

D
R

A
F

T
  (

26
24

 :
 S

u
b

d
iv

is
io

n
 A

p
p

lic
at

io
n

 P
ar

ks
id

e 
P

h
as

e 
1D

-2
 F

in
al

 P
la

t 
M

A
R

 2
2)



 City Council Meeting: 03/24/22 07:00 PM 
 7224 GA Highway 21 Department: Development Services 
 Port Wentworth, GA  31407 Category: Planning/Zoning Item 
  Prepared By: Melanie Ellis 

 SCHEDULED Department Head: Brian Harvey 

  

 AGENDA ITEM (ID # 2625) DOC ID: 2625  

Updated: 3/16/2022 3:40 PM by Melanie Ellis  Page 1 

Subdivision Application submitted by Jessica Vick, Roberts 
Civil Engineering, LLC., on behalf of Landmark 24 Homes of 
Savannah, LLC., for PIN # 7-0906-01-031 (Miller Park Circle) 

located in a P-R-M (Planned Residential Multi-Family) Zoning 
District for a Preliminary Plat of a Major Subdivision (Rice 
Creek Tract C-2 Phase V) for the purpose of Single-Family 

Homes 

Issue/Item: Subdivision Application submitted by Jessica Vick, Roberts Civil Engineering, 

LLC., on behalf of Landmark 24 Homes of Savannah, LLC., for PIN # 7-0906-01-031 (Miller 

Park Circle) located in a P-R-M (Planned Residential Multi-Family) Zoning District for a 

Preliminary Plat of a Major Subdivision (Rice Creek Tract C-2 Phase V) for the purpose of 

Single-Family Homes 

 

Background: This is the Preliminary Plat Submittal for Phase V of the Rice Creek 

Subdivision. Rice Creek Tract C-2 Phase V includes thirty-two (32) single-family lots on 

approximately 5.86 acres.  

 

Facts and Findings: The application appears to be complete. The Subdivision will be 

connected to City water and sanitary sewer utilities and will include the extension of Marsh 

Salt Lane and new road. This application has been reviewed and a concurrence letter issued 

by City engineers T.R. Long Engineering.   

 

Funding: N/A 

 

Recommendation: The Planning Commission will hear this application on Monday, March 

14, 2022 at 6:30 P.M. / UPDATE: THE PLANNING COMMISSION VOTED 

UNANIMOUSLY TO APPROVE THIS APPLICATION. 
 
 
ATTACHMENTS: 

• RICE CREEK TRACT C2 PH 5 PRELIMINARY PLAT MAR 22 - Application (PDF) 

• RICE CREEK TRACT C2 PH 5 PRELIMINARY PLAT MAR 22 - ESPC Approval Letter 12.22.21 (PDF) 

• RICE CREEK TRACT C2 PH 5 PRELIMINARY PLAT MAR 22 - Timeline (DOCX) 

• RICE CREEK TRACT C2 PH 5 PRELIMINARY PLAT MAR 22 - 1st Comment Letter TR Long 1.21.22 (PDF) 

• RICE CREEK TRACT C2 PH 5 PRELIMINARY PLAT MAR 22 - 1st Comment Letter Roberts 2.2.22 (PDF) 

• RICE CREEK TRACT C2 PH 5 PRELIMINARY PLAT MAR 22 - Concurrence Letter TR Long 3.4.22 (PDF) 

• RICE CREEK TRACT C2 PH 5 PRELIMINARY PLAT MAR 22 - Preliminary Plat 12.8.21 (PDF) 

• Planning Commission Minutes March 14, 2022 DRAFT (PDF) 

9.G

Packet Pg. 62



P-R-M

9.G.a

Packet Pg. 63

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 R

IC
E

 C
R

E
E

K
 T

R
A

C
T

 C
2 

P
H

 5
 P

R
E

L
IM

IN
A

R
Y

 P
L

A
T

 M
A

R
 2

2 
- 

A
p

p
lic

at
io

n
  (

26
25

 :
 S

u
b

d
iv

is
io

n
 A

p
p

lic
at

io
n

 R
ic

e 
C

re
ek

 T
ra

ct
 C

-2
 P

h



9.G.a

Packet Pg. 64

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 R

IC
E

 C
R

E
E

K
 T

R
A

C
T

 C
2 

P
H

 5
 P

R
E

L
IM

IN
A

R
Y

 P
L

A
T

 M
A

R
 2

2 
- 

A
p

p
lic

at
io

n
  (

26
25

 :
 S

u
b

d
iv

is
io

n
 A

p
p

lic
at

io
n

 R
ic

e 
C

re
ek

 T
ra

ct
 C

-2
 P

h



9.G.a

Packet Pg. 65

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 R

IC
E

 C
R

E
E

K
 T

R
A

C
T

 C
2 

P
H

 5
 P

R
E

L
IM

IN
A

R
Y

 P
L

A
T

 M
A

R
 2

2 
- 

A
p

p
lic

at
io

n
  (

26
25

 :
 S

u
b

d
iv

is
io

n
 A

p
p

lic
at

io
n

 R
ic

e 
C

re
ek

 T
ra

ct
 C

-2
 P

h



9.G.a

Packet Pg. 66

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 R

IC
E

 C
R

E
E

K
 T

R
A

C
T

 C
2 

P
H

 5
 P

R
E

L
IM

IN
A

R
Y

 P
L

A
T

 M
A

R
 2

2 
- 

A
p

p
lic

at
io

n
  (

26
25

 :
 S

u
b

d
iv

is
io

n
 A

p
p

lic
at

io
n

 R
ic

e 
C

re
ek

 T
ra

ct
 C

-2
 P

h



9.G.a

Packet Pg. 67

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 R

IC
E

 C
R

E
E

K
 T

R
A

C
T

 C
2 

P
H

 5
 P

R
E

L
IM

IN
A

R
Y

 P
L

A
T

 M
A

R
 2

2 
- 

A
p

p
lic

at
io

n
  (

26
25

 :
 S

u
b

d
iv

is
io

n
 A

p
p

lic
at

io
n

 R
ic

e 
C

re
ek

 T
ra

ct
 C

-2
 P

h



9.G.a

Packet Pg. 68

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 R

IC
E

 C
R

E
E

K
 T

R
A

C
T

 C
2 

P
H

 5
 P

R
E

L
IM

IN
A

R
Y

 P
L

A
T

 M
A

R
 2

2 
- 

A
p

p
lic

at
io

n
  (

26
25

 :
 S

u
b

d
iv

is
io

n
 A

p
p

lic
at

io
n

 R
ic

e 
C

re
ek

 T
ra

ct
 C

-2
 P

h



  
Richard E. Dunn, Director 
 
Watershed Protection Branch 

Coastal District Office  

400 Commerce Center Drive 

Brunswick, Georgia 31523-8251 

Phone: 912-264-7284; Fax: (912) 262-3160 

 

 

 

 

 

 

December 22, 2021 

 

Rice Creek Investors #7 

c/o Cole Chenowith 

chenowith@landmark24.com 

 

 

Re: Proposed Land Disturbing Activity 

Rice Creek Phase 5 

Chatham County, Georgia 

 File:  SW-025-04-159 

 

 

Dear Mr. Chenowith: 

 

In accordance with the General NPDES Permit No. GAR100003 for Storm Water Discharges 

Associated with Construction Activities for Common Developments, issued by the Georgia 

Environmental Protection Division (EPD) in August 2018, this Project has been reviewed for 

deficiencies in the identification of waters of the state and potential encroachment of land disturbing 

activities within 25 foot immediately adjacent and upland of the identifiable point from which the State 

mandated buffer is measured.  

 

Based upon this review, the EPD has determined the following: 

 

(1) The project does not have deficiencies in the identification of waters of the state. 

 

(2) The project will not require a buffer variance from the EPD. 

 

However, the EPD reserves the right to change this determination if information that conflicts with the 

original submittal is obtained during a later site inspection. 

 

Additionally, in accordance with the General NPDES Permit No. GAR100003, each Erosion, 

Sedimentation and Pollution Control Plan (ESPCP) submittal shall include a completed and applicable 

ESPCP Checklist established by the Georgia Soil and Water Conservation as of January 1 of the year in 

which the land-disturbing activity was permitted.   

9.G.b

Packet Pg. 69

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 R

IC
E

 C
R

E
E

K
 T

R
A

C
T

 C
2 

P
H

 5
 P

R
E

L
IM

IN
A

R
Y

 P
L

A
T

 M
A

R
 2

2 
- 

E
S

P
C

 A
p

p
ro

va
l L

et
te

r 
12

.2
2.

21
  (

26
25

 :
 S

u
b

d
iv

is
io

n
 A

p
p

lic
at

io
n

 R
ic

e



 

 

Rice Creek Phase 5 

Page 2 

 

A deficient ESPCP is a violation of the NPDES Permit.  If violations occur on the proposed project site 

and enforcement actions become necessary, a deficient ESPCP may increase the fines incurred. The 

applicable Checklist as well as a guidance document are available on the Georgia EPD website @ 

http://epd.georgia.gov.   

 

Based upon this review, EPD has determined the following: 

 

(1) The ESPCP for this Project does not have deficiencies. 

 

If additional information is required, please contact me at 912-230-4880. 

 

 

Sincerely, 

 
Shannon K. Winsness 

Environmental Specialist 

 

 

 

cc: Robert Civil Engineering 

c/o Jessica Vick 

jvick@robertscivilengineering.com 

 

Alice Vick 

EPD Coastal District Office  

400 Commerce Center Drive 

Brunswick, GA 31523-8251 

 

 

File:  SW-025-04-159 

9.G.b

Packet Pg. 70

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 R

IC
E

 C
R

E
E

K
 T

R
A

C
T

 C
2 

P
H

 5
 P

R
E

L
IM

IN
A

R
Y

 P
L

A
T

 M
A

R
 2

2 
- 

E
S

P
C

 A
p

p
ro

va
l L

et
te

r 
12

.2
2.

21
  (

26
25

 :
 S

u
b

d
iv

is
io

n
 A

p
p

lic
at

io
n

 R
ic

e

http://epd.georgia.gov/
mailto:jvick@robertscivilengineering.com


4727 

1 
 3/22/2022 5:30 PM 

Project Timeline 

Project Number: 220000 

Project Name: Rice Creek Tract C2 Phase 5 – Preliminary Plat / Civil Review 

Applicant / Engineer: Jessica Vick, Roberts Civil Engineering 

Owner: Landmark 24 Homes of Savannah 

City Review Engineer: TR Long Engineering 

 

• 12/17/2022 – Application Received; Complete 

• 1/7/2022 – Sent packet over to Trent Long, TR Long Engineering, to start the review.  

• 1/21/2022 – Received 1st review comment letter from TR Long.  

• 1/24/2022 – sent 1st review comment letter to Jessica Vick (Roberts) 

• 2/2/2022 – received 1st resubmittal from Robert’s Civil Engineering.  

• 2/7/2022 – sent resubmittal to TR Long for review. 

• 2/16/2022 – sent email to Roberts Civil engineering that they are tentatively scheduled for the 

March meetings depending on how far the review has gotten. 

• 2/24/2022 – Public hearing notice ad sent to Savannah Morning News. 

• 2/25/2022 – Public hearing notice published in the Savannah Morning News 

• 2/25/2022 – Public hearing notice letters mailed.  

• 3/4/2022 – Received concurrence letter from TR Long. Forwarded to Roberts Civil Engineering.  

9.G.c

Packet Pg. 71

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 R

IC
E

 C
R

E
E

K
 T

R
A

C
T

 C
2 

P
H

 5
 P

R
E

L
IM

IN
A

R
Y

 P
L

A
T

 M
A

R
 2

2 
- 

T
im

el
in

e 
 (

26
25

 :
 S

u
b

d
iv

is
io

n
 A

p
p

lic
at

io
n

 R
ic

e 
C

re
ek

 T
ra

ct
 C

-2
 P

h
 V



 
January 21, 2022 
 
Mr. Brian Harvey 
City of Port Wentworth 
7224 Georgia Highway 21 
Port Wentworth, Georgia 31407 
 
Re:  Rice Creek Subdivision – Phase 5 

Port Wentworth, Georgia 
 
Dear Mr. Harvey, 
 
T. R. Long Engineering, P.C. has reviewed the “Rice Creek Subdivision – Phase 5” prepared by 
Roberts Civil Engineering dated December 4, 2021. We offer the following comments: 
 

1. The plans do not include any benchmarks or control point references.  Additionally, the 
north arrow does not indicate whether project is magnetic or state plane. Please update 
the plan accordingly. 

2. Please provide copy of Erosion and Sedimentation Control Plans for the above referenced 
project. 

3. According to the preliminary plat the wetlands appear to encroach into the proposed 
development. Please provide copy of the Corps of Engineers wetlands permit. 

4. The plans show several cross walks at the road intersection.  Please add handicap ramps 
where the sidewalk connects to the roadway.  Also verify the crosswalk meets ADA 
requirements and does not exceed the required 2.0% cross slope. 

5. Please add a temporary turn around at the temporary end of Marsh Salt Lane. 
6. A new fire hydrant is currently shown in the center of lot 246.  Please move fire hydrant to 

align closer to the property line between lots 245 and 246.  Also please note the distance 
from new fire hydrant on Marsh Salt Lane to nearest existing fire hydrant on Marsh Salt 
Lane.  The distance between fire hydrants should not exceed 500 feet. 

7. Please provide pressure test and fire flow calculations for the new water line. 
8. Please add a blowoff valve in manhole at the end of the new water line on Sea Oats Drive. 
9. Please add a blowoff valve in manhole at the end of the new reclaimed water line on Sea 

Oats Drive. 
10. Please add a manhole on the sanitary sewer main at the end of Marsh Salt Lane. 
11. Detention pond 2A does not show an outlet structure. Please provide an outlet structure 

for this pond. Please add a detail for the outlet structure. 
12. The hydrology report counts stormwater storage below the normal water surface elevation. 

This volume will be filled at the beginning of the storm event and will not be available. This 
volume should not be included in the drainage calculations. Please update the entire 
hydrology report so that stormwater storage below the normal water surface elevation is 
not counted in the calculations.  

13. Please make sure provide stormwater calculations for the 1-year, 2-year, 10-year, 25-year 
50-year and 100 years storms. 

14. Provide storm calculations for all storm pipes. These calculations should be included in 
the HydroCAD report and integrated into the calculations. The method used in the 

9.G.d

Packet Pg. 72

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 R

IC
E

 C
R

E
E

K
 T

R
A

C
T

 C
2 

P
H

 5
 P

R
E

L
IM

IN
A

R
Y

 P
L

A
T

 M
A

R
 2

2 
- 

1s
t 

C
o

m
m

en
t 

L
et

te
r 

T
R

 L
o

n
g

 1
.2

1.
22

  (
26

25
 :

 S
u

b
d

iv
is

io
n

 A
p

p
lic

at
io

n



accompanying report does not take these issues into consideration resulting in inaccurate 
calculations. Please update the calculations accordingly. 

15. Please add pavement and base thickness to paving detail P-1 located on sheet D.  We 
were expecting 2” 9.5 mm, 2” 19mm and 10.5” GABC. 

16. All unsuitable soil in roadway and/or under utilities, shall be removed and replaced with 
structural fill. 

 
Should you have any questions, comments, or need additional information please contact us. 
 
Sincerely, 
 
 
Trent R. Long, P.E. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
  

9.G.d

Packet Pg. 73

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 R

IC
E

 C
R

E
E

K
 T

R
A

C
T

 C
2 

P
H

 5
 P

R
E

L
IM

IN
A

R
Y

 P
L

A
T

 M
A

R
 2

2 
- 

1s
t 

C
o

m
m

en
t 

L
et

te
r 

T
R

 L
o

n
g

 1
.2

1.
22

  (
26

25
 :

 S
u

b
d

iv
is

io
n

 A
p

p
lic

at
io

n



 

St Simons Island | Savannah 
www.robertscivilengineering.com 

 
 

 

February 2, 2022 
 
 

City of Port Wentworth 
Attn: Brian Harvey, Director of Development Services  
7306 GA Highway 21, Suite 301 
Port Wentworth, GA 31407 
 
Re: Rice Creek Phase 5 Construction Plan Comments Response  
 Submittal #2 

 

  Dear Mr. Harvey: 
 
The following comment responses describe the revisions to Rice Creek Phase 5 Construction Plan 
as requested by T. R. Long Engineering, P.C. and City of Port Wentworth. Please forward one copy 
of this letter as well as one copy of the plans to each of the reviewers. 

 

 
Sincerely, 

 
Jessica Vick 

Jessica Vick 
Project Manager 

 
JV/cc 

9.G.e

Packet Pg. 74

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 R

IC
E

 C
R

E
E

K
 T

R
A

C
T

 C
2 

P
H

 5
 P

R
E

L
IM

IN
A

R
Y

 P
L

A
T

 M
A

R
 2

2 
- 

1s
t 

C
o

m
m

en
t 

L
et

te
r 

R
o

b
er

ts
 2

.2
.2

2 
 (

26
25

 :
 S

u
b

d
iv

is
io

n
 A

p
p

lic
at

io
n

http://www.robertscivilengineering.com/


Comments & Responses for Rice Creek Phase 5 
 

  

Trent R. Long, P.E. Comments: 
T. R. Long Engineering, P.C. 
 

1. The plans do not include any benchmarks or control point references.  Additionally, the  
north arrow does not indicate whether project is magnetic or state plane. Please update  
the plan accordingly. 

• Response:  Benchmark and North Arrow note has been added to all plan sheets.  
 

2. Please provide copy of Erosion and Sedimentation Control Plans for the above referenced  
project. 

• Response:  Please see attached ES&PC Plans for RC PH V and concurrence letter 
from EPD. 

 
3. According to the preliminary plat the wetlands appear to encroach into the proposed  

development. Please provide copy of the Corps of Engineers wetlands permit. 

• Response:  ACOE is taking longer than normal to provide wetland permitting. 
This information is forthcoming. 

 
4. The plans show several cross walks at the road intersection.  Please add handicap ramps  

where the sidewalk connects to the roadway.  Also verify the crosswalk meets ADA  
requirements and does not exceed the required 2.0% cross slope. 

• Response:  Spot elevations have been added to ADA ramps to ensure 
compliance with slope standards. 

 
5. Please add a temporary turn around at the temporary end of Marsh Salt Lane. 

• Response:  Temporary turn around has been added. 
 

6. A new fire hydrant is currently shown in the center of lot 246.  Please move fire hydrant to  
align closer to the property line between lots 245 and 246.  Also please note the distance  
from new fire hydrant on Marsh Salt Lane to nearest existing fire hydrant on Marsh Salt  
Lane.  The distance between fire hydrants should not exceed 500 feet. 

• Response:  The hydrant between lots 238 and 239 is offset from the property 
line to maintain 500’ from the previous hydrant in PH IV. The hydrant between 
lots 245 and 246 has been adjusted. 

 
7. Please provide pressure test and fire flow calculations for the new water line. 

• Response: Forthcoming  
 

8. Please add a blowoff valve in manhole at the end of the new water line on Sea Oats Drive. 

• Response:  Blow off valve in MH has been added. 
 

9. Please add a blowoff valve in manhole at the end of the new reclaimed water line on Sea  
       Oats Drive. 

• Response: Blowoff of valve in box has been added, since this main is only 4”. 
 

10. Please add a manhole on the sanitary sewer main at the end of Marsh Salt Lane. 

• Response:  SSMH has been added. 
 

9.G.e

Packet Pg. 75

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 R

IC
E

 C
R

E
E

K
 T

R
A

C
T

 C
2 

P
H

 5
 P

R
E

L
IM

IN
A

R
Y

 P
L

A
T

 M
A

R
 2

2 
- 

1s
t 

C
o

m
m

en
t 

L
et

te
r 

R
o

b
er

ts
 2

.2
.2

2 
 (

26
25

 :
 S

u
b

d
iv

is
io

n
 A

p
p

lic
at

io
n



Comments & Responses for Rice Creek Phase 5 
 

  

11. Detention pond 2A does not show an outlet structure. Please provide an outlet structure  
     for this pond. Please add a detail for the outlet structure. 

• Response:  The outfall ditch has been added to the proposed surface contours, 
and a detail has been added to the detail sheets. 

 
 

12. The hydrology report counts stormwater storage below the normal water surface 
elevation. This volume will be filled at the beginning of the storm event and will not be 
available. This volume should not be included in the drainage calculations. Please update 
the entire hydrology report so that stormwater storage below the normal water surface 
elevation is not counted in the calculations. 

• Response:  The hydrology model has been updated to apply a starting water 
surface elevation equal to the invert of the outlet pipes. 

 
13. Please make sure provide stormwater calculations for the 1-year, 2-year, 10-year, 25-year 

50-year and 100 years storms. 

• Response:  Calculations have been added. 
 

14. Provide storm calculations for all storm pipes. These calculations should be included in the 
HydroCAD report and integrated into the calculations. The method used in the 
accompanying report does not take these issues into consideration resulting in inaccurate 
calculations. Please update the calculations accordingly. 

• Response:  Storm Sewer catch basins and pipes have been added to the 
HydroCAD model. Storm Sewer exhibits for PH V and PH VI have been added to 
the Drainage Report. 

 
15. Please add pavement and base thickness to paving detail P-1 located on sheet D2.  We 

were expecting 2” 9.5 mm, 2” 19mm and 10.5” GABC. 

• Response:  Detail has been updated. 
 

16. All unsuitable soil in roadway and/or under utilities, shall be removed and replaced with 
structural fill. 

• Response: Note 6 has been added to Earthwork Notes on Sheet 2. 
 
 

9.G.e

Packet Pg. 76

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 R

IC
E

 C
R

E
E

K
 T

R
A

C
T

 C
2 

P
H

 5
 P

R
E

L
IM

IN
A

R
Y

 P
L

A
T

 M
A

R
 2

2 
- 

1s
t 

C
o

m
m

en
t 

L
et

te
r 

R
o

b
er

ts
 2

.2
.2

2 
 (

26
25

 :
 S

u
b

d
iv

is
io

n
 A

p
p

lic
at

io
n



 
 
March 4, 2022 
 
Mr. Brian Harvey 
City of Port Wentworth 
7224 Georgia Highway 21 
Port Wentworth, Georgia 31407 
 
Re:  Rice Creek Subdivision – Phase 5 

Port Wentworth, Georgia 
 
Dear Mr. Harvey, 
 
T. R. Long Engineering, P.C. has reviewed the specific development plans entitled “Rice Creek 
Phase 5 Construction Plan,” prepared by Roberts Civil Engineering dated January 31, 2022. along 
with supplemental information provided on February 2, 2022. The proposed plans and 
supplemental information generally meet intent of the ordinances and guidelines governing 
construction in Port Wentworth except for the following: 
 
Concurrence with the site plan by T. R. Long Engineering, P.C. and Port Wentworth does not 
relieve the owner/developer, designer, engineer and contractor nor their representatives from 
their individual or collective responsibilities to comply with provisions of Local, State, and Federal 
regulations and/or ordinances. T. R. Long Engineering, P.C. and Port Wentworth review the 
submitted documents for completeness and general compliance with codes, ordinances and/or 
standards. No design liability can be assumed or assigned to T. R. Long Engineering, P.C., or 
Port Wentworth. All design liability remains with the professional engineer who signed and sealed 
those documents. Additionally, concurrence with the submitted documents and their intent is not 
to be construed as a check of every item submitted and does not prevent Port Wentworth from 
requiring corrections and/or addressing of omissions in the submitted documents and/or 
construction. 
 
Should you have any questions, comments or need additional information please contact us. 
 
Sincerely, 
 
 
 
Trent R. Long, P.E. 

9.G.f

Packet Pg. 77

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 R

IC
E

 C
R

E
E

K
 T

R
A

C
T

 C
2 

P
H

 5
 P

R
E

L
IM

IN
A

R
Y

 P
L

A
T

 M
A

R
 2

2 
- 

C
o

n
cu

rr
en

ce
 L

et
te

r 
T

R
 L

o
n

g
 3

.4
.2

2 
 (

26
25

 :
 S

u
b

d
iv

is
io

n
 A

p
p

lic
at

io
n



9.G.g

Packet Pg. 78

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 R

IC
E

 C
R

E
E

K
 T

R
A

C
T

 C
2 

P
H

 5
 P

R
E

L
IM

IN
A

R
Y

 P
L

A
T

 M
A

R
 2

2 
- 

P
re

lim
in

ar
y 

P
la

t 
12

.8
.2

1 
 (

26
25

 :
 S

u
b

d
iv

is
io

n
 A

p
p

lic
at

io
n

 R
ic

e 
C

re
ek

 T
ra

ct
 C

-2
 P

h
 V

 P
re

lim
in

ar
y 

P
la

t 
M

A
R

 2
02

2)



 

 

CITY OF PORT WENTWORTH 
PLANNING COMMISSION 

  MARCH 14, 2022 

 

 

  

 Council Meeting Room Regular Meeting 6:30 PM 

7224 GA HIGHWAY 21 
PORT WENTWORTH, GA  31407 

City of Port Wentworth Generated: 3/15/2022 10:53 AM Page 1   

1. CALL MEETING TO ORDER 

Chairman CJ Neesmith called the meeting to order.  

2. PRAYER AND PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 

Commissioner Herrin led the Prayer and Pledge of Allegiance.  

3. ROLL CALL - SECRETARY 

 

Attendee Name Title Status Arrived 

Bill Herrin Planning Commissioner Present  

Rosetta Franklin Planning Commissioner Present  

Wanda Rollf Planning Commissioner Present  

Lauree Morris Planning Commissioner Absent  

CJ Neesmith Planning Commissioner Present  

Janet Hester Planning Commissioner Present  

Jeff Sopson Planning Commissioner Present  

Brian Harvey Director of Development Services Present  

Melanie Ellis Building Inspector Present  

4. APPROVAL OF AGENDA 

1. Approval of Agenda 

Agenda was approved with the removal of item 6.A due to the applicant withdrawing the 
application.  

RESULT: ADOPTED [UNANIMOUS] 

MOVER: Bill Herrin, Planning Commissioner 

SECONDER: Rosetta Franklin, Planning Commissioner 

AYES: Herrin, Franklin, Rollf, Hester, Sopson 

ABSENT: Morris 

5. ADOPTION OF MINUTES 

A. Planning Commission - Regular Meeting - Feb 14, 2022 6:30 PM 

9.G.h

Packet Pg. 79

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 P

la
n

n
in

g
 C

o
m

m
is

si
o

n
 M

in
u

te
s 

M
ar

ch
 1

4,
 2

02
2 

D
R

A
F

T
  (

26
25

 :
 S

u
b

d
iv

is
io

n
 A

p
p

lic
at

io
n

 R
ic

e 
C

re
ek

 T
ra

ct
 C

-2
 P

h
 V

 P
re

lim
in

ar
y 

P
la

t



Minutes Planning Commission March 14, 2022 

City of Port Wentworth Generated: 3/15/2022 10:53 AM Page 2   

RESULT: ACCEPTED [UNANIMOUS] 

MOVER: Rosetta Franklin, Planning Commissioner 

SECONDER: Bill Herrin, Planning Commissioner 

AYES: Herrin, Franklin, Rollf, Hester, Sopson 

ABSENT: Morris 

6. ZONING MAP AMENDMENTS (REZONING) 

A. Zoning Map Amendment Application submitted by Charles Teel, Hunter, Maclean, Exley & 
Dunn, P.C., on behalf of Lula Ghyll Roberts Cheathem for PIN # 7-0975-02-010 (Highway 
21) to Rezone from R-A (Residential Agriculture) to P-C-1 (Planned Neighborhood 
Business) Zoning District for the purpose of a Motorcycle Repair & Parts Shop. 

Application withdrawn by Applicant. 

RESULT: WITHDRAWN [UNANIMOUS] 

MOVER: Bill Herrin, Planning Commissioner 

SECONDER: Rosetta Franklin, Planning Commissioner 

AYES: Herrin, Franklin, Rollf, Hester, Sopson 

ABSENT: Morris 

7. ZONING TEXT AMENDMENTS (ORDINANCES) 

8. SITE PLAN/SUBDIVISION APPROVAL 

A. Subdivision Application submitted by Lamar Mercer, PE., Thomas & Hutton Engineering 
Inc., on behalf of BEP Rice Hope, LLC., for PIN # 7-0906-04-069 (100 Lakeside Blvd) 
located in a M-P-O (Master Plan Overlay) Zoning District for a Final Plat of a Major 
Subdivision (Parkside Phase 1D-2 ) for the purpose of Single-Family Homes 

The applicant, Lamar Mercer, was present. Mr. Mercer gave a brief overview of the 
project and offered to answer any questions. There were no questions from the 
Commission. There were no public comments. Commissioner Franklin made a motion to 

approve the application. Commissioner Herrin seconded the motion to approve. The vote 
was unanimous.  

RESULT: APPROVED [UNANIMOUS] 

MOVER: Rosetta Franklin, Planning Commissioner 

SECONDER: Bill Herrin, Planning Commissioner 

AYES: Herrin, Franklin, Rollf, Hester, Sopson 

ABSENT: Morris 

B. Site Plan Review Application submitted by Paul Larner for PIN #:7-0906-04-091 & 7-
0906-04-063 (Mulberry Blvd Extension) for a Specific Development Site Plan to Extend 

Mulberry Blvd in a M-P-O (Master Plan Overlay) Zoning District. 

Ray Pittman was present on behalf of the applicant. Mr. Pittman gave a brief overview of 
the project and offered to answer any questions. There were no questions from the 
Commission. There were no public comments. Commissioner Franklin made a motion to 
approve the application. Commissioner Herrin seconded the motion to approve. The vote 

was unanimous.  

9.G.h

Packet Pg. 80

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 P

la
n

n
in

g
 C

o
m

m
is

si
o

n
 M

in
u

te
s 

M
ar

ch
 1

4,
 2

02
2 

D
R

A
F

T
  (

26
25

 :
 S

u
b

d
iv

is
io

n
 A

p
p

lic
at

io
n

 R
ic

e 
C

re
ek

 T
ra

ct
 C

-2
 P

h
 V

 P
re

lim
in

ar
y 

P
la

t



Minutes Planning Commission March 14, 2022 

City of Port Wentworth Generated: 3/15/2022 10:53 AM Page 3   

RESULT: APPROVED [UNANIMOUS] 

MOVER: Rosetta Franklin, Planning Commissioner 

SECONDER: Bill Herrin, Planning Commissioner 

AYES: Herrin, Franklin, Rollf, Hester, Sopson 

ABSENT: Morris 

C. Subdivision Application submitted by Jessica Vick, Roberts Civil Engineering, LLC., on 
behalf of Landmark 24 Homes of Savannah, LLC., for PIN # 7-0906-01-031 (Miller Park 
Circle) located in a P-R-M (Planned Residential Multi-Family) Zoning District for a 
Preliminary Plat of a Major Subdivision (Rice Creek Tract C-2 Phase V) for the purpose of 
Single-Family Homes 

Kennon Strowd was present on behalf of the applicant. Mr. Strowd gave a brief overview 

of the project and offered to answer any questions. There were no questions from the 
Commission. There were no public comments. Commissioner Franklin made a motion to 
approve the application. Commissioner Herrin seconded the motion to approve. The vote 

was unanimous.  

RESULT: APPROVED [UNANIMOUS] 

MOVER: Rosetta Franklin, Planning Commissioner 

SECONDER: Bill Herrin, Planning Commissioner 

AYES: Herrin, Franklin, Rollf, Hester, Sopson 

ABSENT: Morris 

D. Subdivision Application submitted by Jessica Vick, Roberts Civil Engineering, LLC., on 
behalf of Landmark 24 Homes of Savannah, LLC., for PIN # 7-0906-01-031 (Miller Park 
Circle) located in a P-R-M (Planned Residential Multi-Family) Zoning District for a 
Preliminary Plat of a Major Subdivision (Rice Creek Tract C-1 Phase VI) for the purpose of 
Single-Family Homes 

Kennon Strowd was present on behalf of the applicant. Mr. Strowd gave a brief overview 
of the project and offered to answer any questions. There were no questions from the 
Commission. There were no public comments. Commissioner Franklin made a motion to 
approve the application. Commissioner Herrin seconded the motion to approve. The vote 
was unanimous.  

RESULT: APPROVED [UNANIMOUS] 

MOVER: Rosetta Franklin, Planning Commissioner 

SECONDER: Bill Herrin, Planning Commissioner 

AYES: Herrin, Franklin, Rollf, Hester, Sopson 

ABSENT: Morris 

9. NEW BUSINESS 

1. A Resolution of the Mayor and City Council of the City of Port Wentworth to Amend the 
Zoning Ordinance Regarding the Approval of Final Plats 

Mr. Harvey gave a overview of the resolution. Commissioner Herrin asked if the Planning 

Commission would be covered under the City's insurance when making decisions. Mr. 
Harvey stated he would have to check.  
-Public Hearing 
--Murray Marshal spoke in favor of the resolution.  
Commissioner Franklin made a motion to approve. Commissioner Herrin seconded the 
motion to approve. Commissioners Franklin, Herrin, Rollf, and Sopson voted Yay. 

Commissioner Hester voted Nay. The motion passes 4-1. 

9.G.h

Packet Pg. 81

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 P

la
n

n
in

g
 C

o
m

m
is

si
o

n
 M

in
u

te
s 

M
ar

ch
 1

4,
 2

02
2 

D
R

A
F

T
  (

26
25

 :
 S

u
b

d
iv

is
io

n
 A

p
p

lic
at

io
n

 R
ic

e 
C

re
ek

 T
ra

ct
 C

-2
 P

h
 V

 P
re

lim
in

ar
y 

P
la

t



Minutes Planning Commission March 14, 2022 

City of Port Wentworth Generated: 3/15/2022 10:53 AM Page 4   

RESULT: APPROVED [4 TO 1] 

MOVER: Rosetta Franklin, Planning Commissioner 

SECONDER: Bill Herrin, Planning Commissioner 

AYES: Herrin, Franklin, Rollf, Hester 

NAYS: Sopson 

ABSENT: Morris 

10. ADJOURNMENT 

A. Adjournment 

RESULT: ADOPTED [UNANIMOUS] 

MOVER: Bill Herrin, Planning Commissioner 

SECONDER: Rosetta Franklin, Planning Commissioner 

AYES: Herrin, Franklin, Rollf, Hester, Sopson 

ABSENT: Morris 

. 

 

________________________________________________ 
Chairman 
 
 
The foregoing minutes are true and correct and approved by me on this ________ day of 
____________________________________, 2022. 
 
 
 
 
_________________________________________ 
Secretary 

9.G.h

Packet Pg. 82

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 P

la
n

n
in

g
 C

o
m

m
is

si
o

n
 M

in
u

te
s 

M
ar

ch
 1

4,
 2

02
2 

D
R

A
F

T
  (

26
25

 :
 S

u
b

d
iv

is
io

n
 A

p
p

lic
at

io
n

 R
ic

e 
C

re
ek

 T
ra

ct
 C

-2
 P

h
 V

 P
re

lim
in

ar
y 

P
la

t



 City Council Meeting: 03/24/22 07:00 PM 
 7224 GA Highway 21 Department: Development Services 
 Port Wentworth, GA  31407 Category: Planning/Zoning Item 
  Prepared By: Melanie Ellis 

 SCHEDULED Department Head: Brian Harvey 

  

 AGENDA ITEM (ID # 2626) DOC ID: 2626  

Updated: 3/16/2022 3:44 PM by Melanie Ellis  Page 1 

Subdivision Application submitted by Jessica Vick, Roberts 
Civil Engineering, LLC., on behalf of Landmark 24 Homes of 
Savannah, LLC., for PIN # 7-0906-01-031 (Miller Park Circle) 

located in a P-R-M (Planned Residential Multi-Family) Zoning 
District for a Preliminary Plat of a Major Subdivision (Rice 
Creek Tract C-1 Phase VI) for the purpose of Single-Family 

Homes 

Issue/Item: Subdivision Application submitted by Jessica Vick, Roberts Civil Engineering, 

LLC., on behalf of Landmark 24 Homes of Savannah, LLC., for PIN # 7-0906-01-031 (Miller 

Park Circle) located in a P-R-M (Planned Residential Multi-Family) Zoning District for a 

Preliminary Plat of a Major Subdivision (Rice Creek Tract C-1 Phase VI) for the purpose of 

Single-Family Homes 

 

Background: This is the Preliminary Plat Submittal for Phase VI of the Rice Creek 

Subdivision. Rice Creek Tract C-1 Phase VI includes twenty (20) single-family lots on 

approximately 4.54 acres.  

 

Facts and Findings: The application appears to be complete. The Subdivision will be 

connected to City water and sanitary sewer utilities and will include the extension of Marsh 

Salt Lane. This application is currently under review by City engineers T.R. Long 

Engineering.   

 

Funding: N/A 

 

Recommendation: The Planning Commission will hear this application on Monday, March 

14, 2022 at 6:30 P.M. / UPDATE: THE PLANNING COMMISSION VOTED 

UNANIMOUSLY TO APPROVE THIS APPLICATION.  
 
 
ATTACHMENTS: 

• RICE CREEK TRACT C1 PH 6 PRELIMINARY PLAT MAR 22 - Application (PDF) 

• RICE CREEK TRACT C1 PH 6 PRELIMINARY PLAT MAR 22 - NPDES Letter (PDF) 

• RICE CREEK TRACT C1 PH 6 PRELIMINARY PLAT MAR 22 - Timeline (DOCX) 

• RICE CREEK TRACT C1 PH 6 PRELIMINARY PLAT MAR 22 - 1st Review Comment Letter TR Long 3.7.22 (PDF) 

• RICE CREEK TRACT C1 PH 6 PRELIMINARY PLAT MAR 22 - Preliminary Plat (PDF) 

• Planning Commission Minutes March 14, 2022 DRAFT (PDF) 

9.H

Packet Pg. 83



9.H.a

Packet Pg. 84

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 R

IC
E

 C
R

E
E

K
 T

R
A

C
T

 C
1 

P
H

 6
 P

R
E

L
IM

IN
A

R
Y

 P
L

A
T

 M
A

R
 2

2 
- 

A
p

p
lic

at
io

n
  (

26
26

 :
 S

u
b

d
iv

is
io

n
 A

p
p

lic
at

io
n

 R
ic

e 
C

re
ek

 T
ra

ct
 C

-1
 P

h



9.H.a

Packet Pg. 85

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 R

IC
E

 C
R

E
E

K
 T

R
A

C
T

 C
1 

P
H

 6
 P

R
E

L
IM

IN
A

R
Y

 P
L

A
T

 M
A

R
 2

2 
- 

A
p

p
lic

at
io

n
  (

26
26

 :
 S

u
b

d
iv

is
io

n
 A

p
p

lic
at

io
n

 R
ic

e 
C

re
ek

 T
ra

ct
 C

-1
 P

h



9.H.a

Packet Pg. 86

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 R

IC
E

 C
R

E
E

K
 T

R
A

C
T

 C
1 

P
H

 6
 P

R
E

L
IM

IN
A

R
Y

 P
L

A
T

 M
A

R
 2

2 
- 

A
p

p
lic

at
io

n
  (

26
26

 :
 S

u
b

d
iv

is
io

n
 A

p
p

lic
at

io
n

 R
ic

e 
C

re
ek

 T
ra

ct
 C

-1
 P

h



9.H.a

Packet Pg. 87

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 R

IC
E

 C
R

E
E

K
 T

R
A

C
T

 C
1 

P
H

 6
 P

R
E

L
IM

IN
A

R
Y

 P
L

A
T

 M
A

R
 2

2 
- 

A
p

p
lic

at
io

n
  (

26
26

 :
 S

u
b

d
iv

is
io

n
 A

p
p

lic
at

io
n

 R
ic

e 
C

re
ek

 T
ra

ct
 C

-1
 P

h



9.H.a

Packet Pg. 88

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 R

IC
E

 C
R

E
E

K
 T

R
A

C
T

 C
1 

P
H

 6
 P

R
E

L
IM

IN
A

R
Y

 P
L

A
T

 M
A

R
 2

2 
- 

A
p

p
lic

at
io

n
  (

26
26

 :
 S

u
b

d
iv

is
io

n
 A

p
p

lic
at

io
n

 R
ic

e 
C

re
ek

 T
ra

ct
 C

-1
 P

h



9.H.a

Packet Pg. 89

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 R

IC
E

 C
R

E
E

K
 T

R
A

C
T

 C
1 

P
H

 6
 P

R
E

L
IM

IN
A

R
Y

 P
L

A
T

 M
A

R
 2

2 
- 

A
p

p
lic

at
io

n
  (

26
26

 :
 S

u
b

d
iv

is
io

n
 A

p
p

lic
at

io
n

 R
ic

e 
C

re
ek

 T
ra

ct
 C

-1
 P

h



  
Richard E. Dunn, Director 
 
Watershed Protection Branch 

Coastal District Office  

400 Commerce Center Drive 

Brunswick, Georgia 31523-8251 

Phone: 912-264-7284; Fax: (912) 262-3160 

 

 

 

 

 

 

December 27, 2021 

 

Rice Creek Investors #7 

c/o Cole Chenowith 

chenowith@landmark24.com 

 

 

Re: Proposed Land Disturbing Activity 

Rice Creek Phase 6 

Chatham County, Georgia 

 File:  SW-025-04-160 

 

 

Dear Mr. Chenowith: 

 

In accordance with the General NPDES Permit No. GAR100003 for Storm Water Discharges 

Associated with Construction Activities for Common Developments, issued by the Georgia 

Environmental Protection Division (EPD) in August 2018, this Project has been reviewed for 

deficiencies in the identification of waters of the state and potential encroachment of land disturbing 

activities within 25 foot immediately adjacent and upland of the identifiable point from which the State 

mandated buffer is measured.  

 

Based upon this review, the EPD has determined the following: 

 

(1) The project does not have deficiencies in the identification of waters of the state. 

 

(2) The project will not require a buffer variance from the EPD. 

 

However, the EPD reserves the right to change this determination if information that conflicts with the 

original submittal is obtained during a later site inspection. 

 

Additionally, in accordance with the General NPDES Permit No. GAR100003, each Erosion, 

Sedimentation and Pollution Control Plan (ESPCP) submittal shall include a completed and applicable 

ESPCP Checklist established by the Georgia Soil and Water Conservation as of January 1 of the year in 

which the land-disturbing activity was permitted.   

9.H.b

Packet Pg. 90

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 R

IC
E

 C
R

E
E

K
 T

R
A

C
T

 C
1 

P
H

 6
 P

R
E

L
IM

IN
A

R
Y

 P
L

A
T

 M
A

R
 2

2 
- 

N
P

D
E

S
 L

et
te

r 
 (

26
26

 :
 S

u
b

d
iv

is
io

n
 A

p
p

lic
at

io
n

 R
ic

e 
C

re
ek

 T
ra

ct
 C

-1
 P

h



 

 

Rice Creek Phase 6 

Page 2 

 

A deficient ESPCP is a violation of the NPDES Permit.  If violations occur on the proposed project site 

and enforcement actions become necessary, a deficient ESPCP may increase the fines incurred. The 

applicable Checklist as well as a guidance document are available on the Georgia EPD website @ 

http://epd.georgia.gov.   

 

Based upon this review, EPD has determined the following: 

 

(1) The ESPCP for this Project does not have deficiencies. 

 

If additional information is required, please contact me at 912-230-4880. 

 

 

Sincerely, 

 
Shannon K. Winsness 

Environmental Specialist 

 

 

 

cc: Robert Civil Engineering 

c/o Jessica Vick 

jvick@robertscivilengineering.com 

 

Alice Vick 

EPD Coastal District Office  

400 Commerce Center Drive 

Brunswick, GA 31523-8251 

 

 

File:  SW-025-04-160 

9.H.b

Packet Pg. 91

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 R

IC
E

 C
R

E
E

K
 T

R
A

C
T

 C
1 

P
H

 6
 P

R
E

L
IM

IN
A

R
Y

 P
L

A
T

 M
A

R
 2

2 
- 

N
P

D
E

S
 L

et
te

r 
 (

26
26

 :
 S

u
b

d
iv

is
io

n
 A

p
p

lic
at

io
n

 R
ic

e 
C

re
ek

 T
ra

ct
 C

-1
 P

h

http://epd.georgia.gov/
mailto:jvick@robertscivilengineering.com


4739 

1 
 3/22/2022 5:30 PM 

Project Timeline 

Project Number: 220009 

Project Name: Rice Creek Tract C1 Phase 6 – Preliminary Plat 

Applicant / Engineer: Jessica Vick, Roberts Civil Engineering  

Owner: Landmark 24 Homes of Savannah 

City Review Engineer: TR Long 

 

• 1/5/2022 – Application Received: Complete 

• 1/13/2022 – sent project documents to TR Long for review. 

• 2/16/2022 – sent email to Trent Long for review update.  

• 2/24/2022 – sent public hearing notice to Savannah Morning News 

• 2/25/2022 – public hearing notice published in Savannah Morning News 

• 2/25/2022 – mailed public hearing notice letters.  

• 3/7/2022 – sent email to Trent Long for review update. 

• 3/7/2022 – received 1st comment letter from TR Long.  

• 3/8/2022 – Forwarded comment letter to Robert Civil Engineering.   

9.H.c

Packet Pg. 92

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 R

IC
E

 C
R

E
E

K
 T

R
A

C
T

 C
1 

P
H

 6
 P

R
E

L
IM

IN
A

R
Y

 P
L

A
T

 M
A

R
 2

2 
- 

T
im

el
in

e 
 (

26
26

 :
 S

u
b

d
iv

is
io

n
 A

p
p

lic
at

io
n

 R
ic

e 
C

re
ek

 T
ra

ct
 C

-1
 P

h
 V

I



 
March 7, 2022 
 
Mr. Brian Harvey 
City of Port Wentworth 
7224 Georgia Highway 21 
Port Wentworth, Georgia 31407 
 
Re:  Rice Creek Subdivision – Phase 6 

Port Wentworth, Georgia 
 
Dear Mr. Harvey, 
 
T. R. Long Engineering, P.C. has reviewed the “Site Construction Plans, Rice Creek Phase 6” 
prepared by Roberts Civil Engineering dated January 3, 2022. We offer the following comments: 
 

1. The plans do not include any benchmarks or control point references.  Additionally, the 
north arrow does not indicate whether project is magnetic or state plane. Please update 
the plan accordingly. 

2. Please provide copy of Erosion and Sedimentation Control Plans for the above referenced 
project. 

3. Provide a fire hydrant assembly at Huntington Road instead of an 8” blowoff valve. 
Terminate the line with an 8” gate valve in a manhole. 

4. Please provide pressure test and fire flow calculations for the new water line. 
5. Please clarify the note to the contractor to use 2” asphalt concrete surface “E” mix over 

the typical roadway section. Is this just replacing the 1.5” topping or the entire pavement 
section? 

6. All unsuitable soil in roadway and/or under utilities, shall be removed and replaced with 
structural fill. 

7. Please update the drainage plan to reflect the pipe network shown in the master drainage 
report revised 1/31/2022. 

 
Should you have any questions, comments, or need additional information please contact us. 
 
Sincerely, 
 
 
Trent R. Long, P.E. 
 
 

9.H.d

Packet Pg. 93

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 R

IC
E

 C
R

E
E

K
 T

R
A

C
T

 C
1 

P
H

 6
 P

R
E

L
IM

IN
A

R
Y

 P
L

A
T

 M
A

R
 2

2 
- 

1s
t 

R
ev

ie
w

 C
o

m
m

en
t 

L
et

te
r 

T
R

 L
o

n
g

 3
.7

.2
2 

 (
26

26
 :

 S
u

b
d

iv
is

io
n



9.H.e

Packet Pg. 94

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 R

IC
E

 C
R

E
E

K
 T

R
A

C
T

 C
1 

P
H

 6
 P

R
E

L
IM

IN
A

R
Y

 P
L

A
T

 M
A

R
 2

2 
- 

P
re

lim
in

ar
y 

P
la

t 
 (

26
26

 :
 S

u
b

d
iv

is
io

n
 A

p
p

lic
at

io
n

 R
ic

e 
C

re
ek

 T
ra

ct
 C

-1
 P

h
 V

I P
re

lim
in

ar
y 

P
la

t 
M

A
R

 2
02

2)



 

 

CITY OF PORT WENTWORTH 
PLANNING COMMISSION 

  MARCH 14, 2022 

 

 

  

 Council Meeting Room Regular Meeting 6:30 PM 

7224 GA HIGHWAY 21 
PORT WENTWORTH, GA  31407 

City of Port Wentworth Generated: 3/15/2022 10:53 AM Page 1   

1. CALL MEETING TO ORDER 

Chairman CJ Neesmith called the meeting to order.  

2. PRAYER AND PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 

Commissioner Herrin led the Prayer and Pledge of Allegiance.  

3. ROLL CALL - SECRETARY 

 

Attendee Name Title Status Arrived 

Bill Herrin Planning Commissioner Present  

Rosetta Franklin Planning Commissioner Present  

Wanda Rollf Planning Commissioner Present  

Lauree Morris Planning Commissioner Absent  

CJ Neesmith Planning Commissioner Present  

Janet Hester Planning Commissioner Present  

Jeff Sopson Planning Commissioner Present  

Brian Harvey Director of Development Services Present  

Melanie Ellis Building Inspector Present  

4. APPROVAL OF AGENDA 

1. Approval of Agenda 

Agenda was approved with the removal of item 6.A due to the applicant withdrawing the 
application.  

RESULT: ADOPTED [UNANIMOUS] 

MOVER: Bill Herrin, Planning Commissioner 

SECONDER: Rosetta Franklin, Planning Commissioner 

AYES: Herrin, Franklin, Rollf, Hester, Sopson 

ABSENT: Morris 

5. ADOPTION OF MINUTES 

A. Planning Commission - Regular Meeting - Feb 14, 2022 6:30 PM 

9.H.f

Packet Pg. 95

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 P

la
n

n
in

g
 C

o
m

m
is

si
o

n
 M

in
u

te
s 

M
ar

ch
 1

4,
 2

02
2 

D
R

A
F

T
  (

26
26

 :
 S

u
b

d
iv

is
io

n
 A

p
p

lic
at

io
n

 R
ic

e 
C

re
ek

 T
ra

ct
 C

-1
 P

h
 V

I P
re

lim
in

ar
y 

P
la

t



Minutes Planning Commission March 14, 2022 

City of Port Wentworth Generated: 3/15/2022 10:53 AM Page 2   

RESULT: ACCEPTED [UNANIMOUS] 

MOVER: Rosetta Franklin, Planning Commissioner 

SECONDER: Bill Herrin, Planning Commissioner 

AYES: Herrin, Franklin, Rollf, Hester, Sopson 

ABSENT: Morris 

6. ZONING MAP AMENDMENTS (REZONING) 

A. Zoning Map Amendment Application submitted by Charles Teel, Hunter, Maclean, Exley & 
Dunn, P.C., on behalf of Lula Ghyll Roberts Cheathem for PIN # 7-0975-02-010 (Highway 
21) to Rezone from R-A (Residential Agriculture) to P-C-1 (Planned Neighborhood 
Business) Zoning District for the purpose of a Motorcycle Repair & Parts Shop. 

Application withdrawn by Applicant. 

RESULT: WITHDRAWN [UNANIMOUS] 

MOVER: Bill Herrin, Planning Commissioner 

SECONDER: Rosetta Franklin, Planning Commissioner 

AYES: Herrin, Franklin, Rollf, Hester, Sopson 

ABSENT: Morris 

7. ZONING TEXT AMENDMENTS (ORDINANCES) 

8. SITE PLAN/SUBDIVISION APPROVAL 

A. Subdivision Application submitted by Lamar Mercer, PE., Thomas & Hutton Engineering 
Inc., on behalf of BEP Rice Hope, LLC., for PIN # 7-0906-04-069 (100 Lakeside Blvd) 
located in a M-P-O (Master Plan Overlay) Zoning District for a Final Plat of a Major 
Subdivision (Parkside Phase 1D-2 ) for the purpose of Single-Family Homes 

The applicant, Lamar Mercer, was present. Mr. Mercer gave a brief overview of the 
project and offered to answer any questions. There were no questions from the 
Commission. There were no public comments. Commissioner Franklin made a motion to 

approve the application. Commissioner Herrin seconded the motion to approve. The vote 
was unanimous.  

RESULT: APPROVED [UNANIMOUS] 

MOVER: Rosetta Franklin, Planning Commissioner 

SECONDER: Bill Herrin, Planning Commissioner 

AYES: Herrin, Franklin, Rollf, Hester, Sopson 

ABSENT: Morris 

B. Site Plan Review Application submitted by Paul Larner for PIN #:7-0906-04-091 & 7-
0906-04-063 (Mulberry Blvd Extension) for a Specific Development Site Plan to Extend 

Mulberry Blvd in a M-P-O (Master Plan Overlay) Zoning District. 

Ray Pittman was present on behalf of the applicant. Mr. Pittman gave a brief overview of 
the project and offered to answer any questions. There were no questions from the 
Commission. There were no public comments. Commissioner Franklin made a motion to 
approve the application. Commissioner Herrin seconded the motion to approve. The vote 

was unanimous.  

9.H.f

Packet Pg. 96

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 P

la
n

n
in

g
 C

o
m

m
is

si
o

n
 M

in
u

te
s 

M
ar

ch
 1

4,
 2

02
2 

D
R

A
F

T
  (

26
26

 :
 S

u
b

d
iv

is
io

n
 A

p
p

lic
at

io
n

 R
ic

e 
C

re
ek

 T
ra

ct
 C

-1
 P

h
 V

I P
re

lim
in

ar
y 

P
la

t



Minutes Planning Commission March 14, 2022 

City of Port Wentworth Generated: 3/15/2022 10:53 AM Page 3   

RESULT: APPROVED [UNANIMOUS] 

MOVER: Rosetta Franklin, Planning Commissioner 

SECONDER: Bill Herrin, Planning Commissioner 

AYES: Herrin, Franklin, Rollf, Hester, Sopson 

ABSENT: Morris 

C. Subdivision Application submitted by Jessica Vick, Roberts Civil Engineering, LLC., on 
behalf of Landmark 24 Homes of Savannah, LLC., for PIN # 7-0906-01-031 (Miller Park 
Circle) located in a P-R-M (Planned Residential Multi-Family) Zoning District for a 
Preliminary Plat of a Major Subdivision (Rice Creek Tract C-2 Phase V) for the purpose of 
Single-Family Homes 

Kennon Strowd was present on behalf of the applicant. Mr. Strowd gave a brief overview 

of the project and offered to answer any questions. There were no questions from the 
Commission. There were no public comments. Commissioner Franklin made a motion to 
approve the application. Commissioner Herrin seconded the motion to approve. The vote 

was unanimous.  

RESULT: APPROVED [UNANIMOUS] 

MOVER: Rosetta Franklin, Planning Commissioner 

SECONDER: Bill Herrin, Planning Commissioner 

AYES: Herrin, Franklin, Rollf, Hester, Sopson 

ABSENT: Morris 

D. Subdivision Application submitted by Jessica Vick, Roberts Civil Engineering, LLC., on 
behalf of Landmark 24 Homes of Savannah, LLC., for PIN # 7-0906-01-031 (Miller Park 
Circle) located in a P-R-M (Planned Residential Multi-Family) Zoning District for a 
Preliminary Plat of a Major Subdivision (Rice Creek Tract C-1 Phase VI) for the purpose of 
Single-Family Homes 

Kennon Strowd was present on behalf of the applicant. Mr. Strowd gave a brief overview 
of the project and offered to answer any questions. There were no questions from the 
Commission. There were no public comments. Commissioner Franklin made a motion to 
approve the application. Commissioner Herrin seconded the motion to approve. The vote 
was unanimous.  

RESULT: APPROVED [UNANIMOUS] 

MOVER: Rosetta Franklin, Planning Commissioner 

SECONDER: Bill Herrin, Planning Commissioner 

AYES: Herrin, Franklin, Rollf, Hester, Sopson 

ABSENT: Morris 

9. NEW BUSINESS 

1. A Resolution of the Mayor and City Council of the City of Port Wentworth to Amend the 
Zoning Ordinance Regarding the Approval of Final Plats 

Mr. Harvey gave a overview of the resolution. Commissioner Herrin asked if the Planning 

Commission would be covered under the City's insurance when making decisions. Mr. 
Harvey stated he would have to check.  
-Public Hearing 
--Murray Marshal spoke in favor of the resolution.  
Commissioner Franklin made a motion to approve. Commissioner Herrin seconded the 
motion to approve. Commissioners Franklin, Herrin, Rollf, and Sopson voted Yay. 

Commissioner Hester voted Nay. The motion passes 4-1. 

9.H.f

Packet Pg. 97

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 P

la
n

n
in

g
 C

o
m

m
is

si
o

n
 M

in
u

te
s 

M
ar

ch
 1

4,
 2

02
2 

D
R

A
F

T
  (

26
26

 :
 S

u
b

d
iv

is
io

n
 A

p
p

lic
at

io
n

 R
ic

e 
C

re
ek

 T
ra

ct
 C

-1
 P

h
 V

I P
re

lim
in

ar
y 

P
la

t



Minutes Planning Commission March 14, 2022 

City of Port Wentworth Generated: 3/15/2022 10:53 AM Page 4   

RESULT: APPROVED [4 TO 1] 

MOVER: Rosetta Franklin, Planning Commissioner 

SECONDER: Bill Herrin, Planning Commissioner 

AYES: Herrin, Franklin, Rollf, Hester 

NAYS: Sopson 

ABSENT: Morris 

10. ADJOURNMENT 

A. Adjournment 

RESULT: ADOPTED [UNANIMOUS] 

MOVER: Bill Herrin, Planning Commissioner 

SECONDER: Rosetta Franklin, Planning Commissioner 

AYES: Herrin, Franklin, Rollf, Hester, Sopson 

ABSENT: Morris 

. 

 

________________________________________________ 
Chairman 
 
 
The foregoing minutes are true and correct and approved by me on this ________ day of 
____________________________________, 2022. 
 
 
 
 
_________________________________________ 
Secretary 

9.H.f

Packet Pg. 98

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 P

la
n

n
in

g
 C

o
m

m
is

si
o

n
 M

in
u

te
s 

M
ar

ch
 1

4,
 2

02
2 

D
R

A
F

T
  (

26
26

 :
 S

u
b

d
iv

is
io

n
 A

p
p

lic
at

io
n

 R
ic

e 
C

re
ek

 T
ra

ct
 C

-1
 P

h
 V

I P
re

lim
in

ar
y 

P
la

t



 City Council Meeting: 03/24/22 07:00 PM 
 7224 GA Highway 21 Department: Development Services 
 Port Wentworth, GA  31407 Category: Planning/Zoning Item 
  Prepared By: Melanie Ellis 

 SCHEDULED Department Head: Brian Harvey 

  

 AGENDA ITEM (ID # 2627) DOC ID: 2627  

Updated: 3/22/2022 5:23 PM by Steve Davis  Page 1 

A Resolution of the Mayor and City Council of the City of Port 
Wentworth to Amend the Zoning Ordinance Regarding the 

Approval of Final Plats. 2nd Reading 

Issue/Item: A Resolution of the Mayor and City Council of the City of Port Wentworth to 

Amend the Zoning Ordinance Regarding the Approval of Final Plats. 2nd Reading 

 

Background: This resolution is proposed to streamline the final plat approval process for 

the City of Port Wentworth 

 

Facts and Findings:   The changes put forth would amend the current code from requiring 

Mayor and City Council’s approval of a final plat to placing that final approval with the City 

Manager. 

 

Funding:  N/A 

 

Recommendation:  Approval / UPDATE: THE PLANNING COMMISSION VOTED 4-1 

TO APPROVE. 
 
 
ATTACHMENTS: 

• Resolution to Amend the Zoning Ordinance for Approval of Final Plats MARCH 2022 (PDF) 

• Planning Commission Minutes March 14, 2022 DRAFT (PDF) 

10.A

Packet Pg. 99



10.A.a

Packet Pg. 100

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 R

es
o

lu
ti

o
n

 t
o

 A
m

en
d

 t
h

e 
Z

o
n

in
g

 O
rd

in
an

ce
 f

o
r 

A
p

p
ro

va
l o

f 
F

in
al

 P
la

ts
 M

A
R

C
H

 2
02

2 
 (

26
27

 :
 R

es
o

lu
ti

o
n

 t
o

 A
m

en
d

 t
h

e 
Z

o
n

in
g



10.A.a

Packet Pg. 101

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 R

es
o

lu
ti

o
n

 t
o

 A
m

en
d

 t
h

e 
Z

o
n

in
g

 O
rd

in
an

ce
 f

o
r 

A
p

p
ro

va
l o

f 
F

in
al

 P
la

ts
 M

A
R

C
H

 2
02

2 
 (

26
27

 :
 R

es
o

lu
ti

o
n

 t
o

 A
m

en
d

 t
h

e 
Z

o
n

in
g



10.A.a

Packet Pg. 102

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 R

es
o

lu
ti

o
n

 t
o

 A
m

en
d

 t
h

e 
Z

o
n

in
g

 O
rd

in
an

ce
 f

o
r 

A
p

p
ro

va
l o

f 
F

in
al

 P
la

ts
 M

A
R

C
H

 2
02

2 
 (

26
27

 :
 R

es
o

lu
ti

o
n

 t
o

 A
m

en
d

 t
h

e 
Z

o
n

in
g



10.A.a

Packet Pg. 103

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 R

es
o

lu
ti

o
n

 t
o

 A
m

en
d

 t
h

e 
Z

o
n

in
g

 O
rd

in
an

ce
 f

o
r 

A
p

p
ro

va
l o

f 
F

in
al

 P
la

ts
 M

A
R

C
H

 2
02

2 
 (

26
27

 :
 R

es
o

lu
ti

o
n

 t
o

 A
m

en
d

 t
h

e 
Z

o
n

in
g



 

 

CITY OF PORT WENTWORTH 
PLANNING COMMISSION 

  MARCH 14, 2022 

 

 

  

 Council Meeting Room Regular Meeting 6:30 PM 

7224 GA HIGHWAY 21 
PORT WENTWORTH, GA  31407 

City of Port Wentworth Generated: 3/15/2022 10:53 AM Page 1   

1. CALL MEETING TO ORDER 

Chairman CJ Neesmith called the meeting to order.  

2. PRAYER AND PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 

Commissioner Herrin led the Prayer and Pledge of Allegiance.  

3. ROLL CALL - SECRETARY 

 

Attendee Name Title Status Arrived 

Bill Herrin Planning Commissioner Present  

Rosetta Franklin Planning Commissioner Present  

Wanda Rollf Planning Commissioner Present  

Lauree Morris Planning Commissioner Absent  

CJ Neesmith Planning Commissioner Present  

Janet Hester Planning Commissioner Present  

Jeff Sopson Planning Commissioner Present  

Brian Harvey Director of Development Services Present  

Melanie Ellis Building Inspector Present  

4. APPROVAL OF AGENDA 

1. Approval of Agenda 

Agenda was approved with the removal of item 6.A due to the applicant withdrawing the 
application.  

RESULT: ADOPTED [UNANIMOUS] 

MOVER: Bill Herrin, Planning Commissioner 

SECONDER: Rosetta Franklin, Planning Commissioner 

AYES: Herrin, Franklin, Rollf, Hester, Sopson 

ABSENT: Morris 

5. ADOPTION OF MINUTES 

A. Planning Commission - Regular Meeting - Feb 14, 2022 6:30 PM 

10.A.b

Packet Pg. 104

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 P

la
n

n
in

g
 C

o
m

m
is

si
o

n
 M

in
u

te
s 

M
ar

ch
 1

4,
 2

02
2 

D
R

A
F

T
  (

26
27

 :
 R

es
o

lu
ti

o
n

 t
o

 A
m

en
d

 t
h

e 
Z

o
n

in
g

 O
rd

in
an

ce
 R

eg
ar

d
in

g
 A

p
p

ro
va

l o
f



Minutes Planning Commission March 14, 2022 

City of Port Wentworth Generated: 3/15/2022 10:53 AM Page 2   

RESULT: ACCEPTED [UNANIMOUS] 

MOVER: Rosetta Franklin, Planning Commissioner 

SECONDER: Bill Herrin, Planning Commissioner 

AYES: Herrin, Franklin, Rollf, Hester, Sopson 

ABSENT: Morris 

6. ZONING MAP AMENDMENTS (REZONING) 

A. Zoning Map Amendment Application submitted by Charles Teel, Hunter, Maclean, Exley & 
Dunn, P.C., on behalf of Lula Ghyll Roberts Cheathem for PIN # 7-0975-02-010 (Highway 
21) to Rezone from R-A (Residential Agriculture) to P-C-1 (Planned Neighborhood 
Business) Zoning District for the purpose of a Motorcycle Repair & Parts Shop. 

Application withdrawn by Applicant. 

RESULT: WITHDRAWN [UNANIMOUS] 

MOVER: Bill Herrin, Planning Commissioner 

SECONDER: Rosetta Franklin, Planning Commissioner 

AYES: Herrin, Franklin, Rollf, Hester, Sopson 

ABSENT: Morris 

7. ZONING TEXT AMENDMENTS (ORDINANCES) 

8. SITE PLAN/SUBDIVISION APPROVAL 

A. Subdivision Application submitted by Lamar Mercer, PE., Thomas & Hutton Engineering 
Inc., on behalf of BEP Rice Hope, LLC., for PIN # 7-0906-04-069 (100 Lakeside Blvd) 
located in a M-P-O (Master Plan Overlay) Zoning District for a Final Plat of a Major 
Subdivision (Parkside Phase 1D-2 ) for the purpose of Single-Family Homes 

The applicant, Lamar Mercer, was present. Mr. Mercer gave a brief overview of the 
project and offered to answer any questions. There were no questions from the 
Commission. There were no public comments. Commissioner Franklin made a motion to 

approve the application. Commissioner Herrin seconded the motion to approve. The vote 
was unanimous.  

RESULT: APPROVED [UNANIMOUS] 

MOVER: Rosetta Franklin, Planning Commissioner 

SECONDER: Bill Herrin, Planning Commissioner 

AYES: Herrin, Franklin, Rollf, Hester, Sopson 

ABSENT: Morris 

B. Site Plan Review Application submitted by Paul Larner for PIN #:7-0906-04-091 & 7-
0906-04-063 (Mulberry Blvd Extension) for a Specific Development Site Plan to Extend 

Mulberry Blvd in a M-P-O (Master Plan Overlay) Zoning District. 

Ray Pittman was present on behalf of the applicant. Mr. Pittman gave a brief overview of 
the project and offered to answer any questions. There were no questions from the 
Commission. There were no public comments. Commissioner Franklin made a motion to 
approve the application. Commissioner Herrin seconded the motion to approve. The vote 

was unanimous.  

10.A.b

Packet Pg. 105

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 P

la
n

n
in

g
 C

o
m

m
is

si
o

n
 M

in
u

te
s 

M
ar

ch
 1

4,
 2

02
2 

D
R

A
F

T
  (

26
27

 :
 R

es
o

lu
ti

o
n

 t
o

 A
m

en
d

 t
h

e 
Z

o
n

in
g

 O
rd

in
an

ce
 R

eg
ar

d
in

g
 A

p
p

ro
va

l o
f



Minutes Planning Commission March 14, 2022 

City of Port Wentworth Generated: 3/15/2022 10:53 AM Page 3   

RESULT: APPROVED [UNANIMOUS] 

MOVER: Rosetta Franklin, Planning Commissioner 

SECONDER: Bill Herrin, Planning Commissioner 

AYES: Herrin, Franklin, Rollf, Hester, Sopson 

ABSENT: Morris 

C. Subdivision Application submitted by Jessica Vick, Roberts Civil Engineering, LLC., on 
behalf of Landmark 24 Homes of Savannah, LLC., for PIN # 7-0906-01-031 (Miller Park 
Circle) located in a P-R-M (Planned Residential Multi-Family) Zoning District for a 
Preliminary Plat of a Major Subdivision (Rice Creek Tract C-2 Phase V) for the purpose of 
Single-Family Homes 

Kennon Strowd was present on behalf of the applicant. Mr. Strowd gave a brief overview 

of the project and offered to answer any questions. There were no questions from the 
Commission. There were no public comments. Commissioner Franklin made a motion to 
approve the application. Commissioner Herrin seconded the motion to approve. The vote 

was unanimous.  

RESULT: APPROVED [UNANIMOUS] 

MOVER: Rosetta Franklin, Planning Commissioner 

SECONDER: Bill Herrin, Planning Commissioner 

AYES: Herrin, Franklin, Rollf, Hester, Sopson 

ABSENT: Morris 

D. Subdivision Application submitted by Jessica Vick, Roberts Civil Engineering, LLC., on 
behalf of Landmark 24 Homes of Savannah, LLC., for PIN # 7-0906-01-031 (Miller Park 
Circle) located in a P-R-M (Planned Residential Multi-Family) Zoning District for a 
Preliminary Plat of a Major Subdivision (Rice Creek Tract C-1 Phase VI) for the purpose of 
Single-Family Homes 

Kennon Strowd was present on behalf of the applicant. Mr. Strowd gave a brief overview 
of the project and offered to answer any questions. There were no questions from the 
Commission. There were no public comments. Commissioner Franklin made a motion to 
approve the application. Commissioner Herrin seconded the motion to approve. The vote 
was unanimous.  

RESULT: APPROVED [UNANIMOUS] 

MOVER: Rosetta Franklin, Planning Commissioner 

SECONDER: Bill Herrin, Planning Commissioner 

AYES: Herrin, Franklin, Rollf, Hester, Sopson 

ABSENT: Morris 

9. NEW BUSINESS 

1. A Resolution of the Mayor and City Council of the City of Port Wentworth to Amend the 
Zoning Ordinance Regarding the Approval of Final Plats 

Mr. Harvey gave a overview of the resolution. Commissioner Herrin asked if the Planning 

Commission would be covered under the City's insurance when making decisions. Mr. 
Harvey stated he would have to check.  
-Public Hearing 
--Murray Marshal spoke in favor of the resolution.  
Commissioner Franklin made a motion to approve. Commissioner Herrin seconded the 
motion to approve. Commissioners Franklin, Herrin, Rollf, and Sopson voted Yay. 

Commissioner Hester voted Nay. The motion passes 4-1. 

10.A.b

Packet Pg. 106

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 P

la
n

n
in

g
 C

o
m

m
is

si
o

n
 M

in
u

te
s 

M
ar

ch
 1

4,
 2

02
2 

D
R

A
F

T
  (

26
27

 :
 R

es
o

lu
ti

o
n

 t
o

 A
m

en
d

 t
h

e 
Z

o
n

in
g

 O
rd

in
an

ce
 R

eg
ar

d
in

g
 A

p
p

ro
va

l o
f



Minutes Planning Commission March 14, 2022 

City of Port Wentworth Generated: 3/15/2022 10:53 AM Page 4   

RESULT: APPROVED [4 TO 1] 

MOVER: Rosetta Franklin, Planning Commissioner 

SECONDER: Bill Herrin, Planning Commissioner 

AYES: Herrin, Franklin, Rollf, Hester 

NAYS: Sopson 

ABSENT: Morris 

10. ADJOURNMENT 

A. Adjournment 

RESULT: ADOPTED [UNANIMOUS] 

MOVER: Bill Herrin, Planning Commissioner 

SECONDER: Rosetta Franklin, Planning Commissioner 

AYES: Herrin, Franklin, Rollf, Hester, Sopson 

ABSENT: Morris 

. 

 

________________________________________________ 
Chairman 
 
 
The foregoing minutes are true and correct and approved by me on this ________ day of 
____________________________________, 2022. 
 
 
 
 
_________________________________________ 
Secretary 

10.A.b

Packet Pg. 107

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 P

la
n

n
in

g
 C

o
m

m
is

si
o

n
 M

in
u

te
s 

M
ar

ch
 1

4,
 2

02
2 

D
R

A
F

T
  (

26
27

 :
 R

es
o

lu
ti

o
n

 t
o

 A
m

en
d

 t
h

e 
Z

o
n

in
g

 O
rd

in
an

ce
 R

eg
ar

d
in

g
 A

p
p

ro
va

l o
f



 City Council Meeting: 03/24/22 07:00 PM 
 7224 GA Highway 21 Department: City Administrator 
 Port Wentworth, GA  31407 Category: Resolution 
  Prepared By: Steve Davis 

 SCHEDULED Department Head: Steve Davis 

  

 AGENDA ITEM (ID # 2633) DOC ID: 2633  

Updated: 3/22/2022 5:10 PM by Steve Davis  Page 1 

Resolution to Support Retreat and Feasibility Study 

Issue/Item: City council retreat and a feasibility study resolution 

 

Background: A retreat to foster better relationships and a study to start discussions of city 

hood with empirical facts and data.  

 

Facts and Findings:  

 

Funding: N/A 

 

Recommendation: Council Approval 
 
 
ATTACHMENTS: 

• RES - Supporting Retreat  Feasbility Study (PDF) 

10.B

Packet Pg. 108



Resolution No. R2022-015  City of Port Wentworth 1 

RESOLTUION NO. R2022-015 

STATE OF GEORGIA 

COUNTY OF CHATHAM 

CITY OF PORT WENTWORTH 

 

A RESOLUTION SUPPORTING A RETREAT  

AND A FEASIBILITY STUDY 

 

WHEREAS, the City of Port Wentworth has seven elected officials representing its citizens, 

businesses, and communities; and 

 

WHEREAS, the City functions best when there is cooperation and coordination between its 

elected officials, and between its elected officials and City Staff; and  

 

WHEREAS, the Mayor and Council desire to foster and accommodate these productive 

relationships for the betterment of the City; and  

 

WHEREAS, the Mayor and Council are aware of multiple and conflicting news and social 

media stories surrounding the relationships of City officials and about possible dissolution of the 

City; and 

 

WHEREAS, the Mayor and Council desire to have professionals advise the City on the facts and 

feasibility of the City, and possible alternate iterations of the City in the future;  

 

NOW, THEREFORE, the Mayor and Council of the City of Port Wentworth hereby resolve: 

 

A. Mayor and Council Retreat 

 

1. The Mayor and Council resolve to have a Retreat to improve teamwork, foster 

relationships, receive training on various topics, and develop strategies for the City’s 

future; and 

 

2. The City Manager is instructed to coordinate with the Mayor and Council, as well as 

City Staff, to find a date and location for this Retreat. 

 

B. Feasibility Study 

 

1. The Mayor and Council resolve to support the Carl Vinson Institute, or other such 

professional organization, to study the feasibility of various and alternate iterations of 

the City in the future; and 

 

2. The City Manager is instructed to engage an organization for these stated purposes, 

and report back to the Mayor and Council on the study’s timetable and costs, and for 

final approval to commence the study. 

 

 

10.B.a

Packet Pg. 109

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 R

E
S

 -
 S

u
p

p
o

rt
in

g
 R

et
re

at
  F

ea
sb

ili
ty

 S
tu

d
y 

 (
26

33
 :

 R
es

o
lu

ti
o

n
 t

o
 S

u
p

p
o

rt
 R

et
re

at
 a

n
d

 F
ea

si
b

ili
ty

 S
tu

d
y)



Resolution No. R2022-015  City of Port Wentworth 2 

 

RESOLVED this the 24th day of March 2022. 

 

 

       Approved: 

 

 

             

       Gary Norton, Mayor 

 

 

Attest: 

 

 

     

Clerk, or City Staff 

 

10.B.a

Packet Pg. 110

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 R

E
S

 -
 S

u
p

p
o

rt
in

g
 R

et
re

at
  F

ea
sb

ili
ty

 S
tu

d
y 

 (
26

33
 :

 R
es

o
lu

ti
o

n
 t

o
 S

u
p

p
o

rt
 R

et
re

at
 a

n
d

 F
ea

si
b

ili
ty

 S
tu

d
y)



 City Council Meeting: 03/24/22 07:00 PM 
 7224 GA Highway 21 Department: City Administrator 
 Port Wentworth, GA  31407 Category: Resolution 
  Prepared By: Steve Davis 

 SCHEDULED Department Head: Steve Davis 

  

 AGENDA ITEM (ID # 2632) DOC ID: 2632  

Updated: 3/22/2022 4:56 PM by Steve Davis  Page 1 

Resolution to Transmit Comprehensive Plan 

Issue/Item: The Port Wentworth 2021 Comprehensive Plan was adopted by City Council in 

July 2021.   

 

Background: The City Council is required to send a resolution to the state after the review 

for final state adoption.   

 

Facts and Findings:  

 

Funding: N/A 

 

Recommendation: Council Approval  
 
 
ATTACHMENTS: 

• Port Wentworth 2021 Comp Plan Adoption Resolution 3-24-22 (PDF) 

10.C

Packet Pg. 111



10.C.a

Packet Pg. 112

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 P

o
rt

 W
en

tw
o

rt
h

 2
02

1 
C

o
m

p
 P

la
n

 A
d

o
p

ti
o

n
 R

es
o

lu
ti

o
n

 3
-2

4-
22

  (
26

32
 :

 R
es

o
lu

ti
o

n
 t

o
 T

ra
n

sm
it

 C
o

m
p

re
h

en
si

ve
 P

la
n

)



10.C.a

Packet Pg. 113

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 P

o
rt

 W
en

tw
o

rt
h

 2
02

1 
C

o
m

p
 P

la
n

 A
d

o
p

ti
o

n
 R

es
o

lu
ti

o
n

 3
-2

4-
22

  (
26

32
 :

 R
es

o
lu

ti
o

n
 t

o
 T

ra
n

sm
it

 C
o

m
p

re
h

en
si

ve
 P

la
n

)


	Agenda Packet
	1. Call Meeting To Order - Roll Call
	2. Prayer and Pledge of Allegiance
	3. Approval of Agenda
	4. Adoption of Minutes
	A. Minutes of Jan 27, 2022 6:30 PM
	Policy Paper: Minutes of Jan 27, 2022 6:30 PM


	5. Recognition of Special Guests
	6. Elections & Appointments
	7. Consent Agenda
	A. 2628 : Antrim Road Roadway Improvements Pay Request No. 3
	Policy Paper: 2628 : Antrim Road Roadway Improvements Pay Request No. 3
	a. Antrim Roadway Improvements Pay Request No. 3 March 2022

	B. 2629 : Red Robin Court Roadway Improvements Pay Request No. 4
	Policy Paper: 2629 : Red Robin Court Roadway Improvements Pay Request No. 4
	a. Red Robin Ct Roadway Improvements Pay Request No. 4 March 2022


	8. Unfinished Business
	9. New Business
	A. Updated Agreement for Legal Services
	B. 2621 : MOU between the GDOT and Port Wentworth
	Policy Paper: 2621 : MOU between the GDOT and Port Wentworth
	a. MOU with GDOT Documents

	C. 2623 : Oxygen system NOVAIR USA Corp. for the Waste Water Treatment
	Policy Paper: 2623 : Oxygen system NOVAIR USA Corp. for the Waste Water Treatment
	a. NOVAIR Oxygen System Quote

	D. 2634 : Agreement for Mutual Aid for 165th FD
	Policy Paper: 2634 : Agreement for Mutual Aid for 165th FD
	a. Airport MOU

	E. 2622 : Site Plan Review (Specific) Mulberry Blvd Extension 7-0906-04-091 & 7-0906-04-063
	Policy Paper: 2622 : Site Plan Review (Specific) Mulberry Blvd Extension 7-0906-04-091 & 7-0906-04-063
	a. MULBERRY BLVD EXTENSION SPECIFIC SITE PLAN MAR 22 - Application
	b. MULBERRY BLVD EXTENSION SPECIFIC SITE PLAN MAR 22 - Timeline
	c. MULBERRY BLVD EXTENSION SPECIFIC SITE PLAN MAR 22 - 1st Comment Letter TR Long 1.20.22
	d. MULBERRY BLVD EXTENSION SPECIFIC SITE PLAN MAR 22 - 1st Return Comment Letter Pittman 2.28.22
	e. Planning Commission Minutes March 14, 2022 DRAFT

	F. 2624 : Subdivision Application Parkside Phase 1D-2 Final Plat MAR 22
	Policy Paper: 2624 : Subdivision Application Parkside Phase 1D-2 Final Plat MAR 22
	a. PARKSIDE PH 1D-2 FINAL PLAT MAR 22 - Application
	b. PARKSIDE PH 1D-2 FINAL PLAT MAR 22 - Timeline
	c. PARKSIDE PH 1D-2 FINAL PLAT MAR 22 - Final Plat
	d. Planning Commission Minutes March 14, 2022 DRAFT

	G. 2625 : Subdivision Application Rice Creek Tract C-2 Ph V Preliminary Plat MAR 2022
	Policy Paper: 2625 : Subdivision Application Rice Creek Tract C-2 Ph V Preliminary Plat MAR 2022
	a. RICE CREEK TRACT C2 PH 5 PRELIMINARY PLAT MAR 22 - Application
	b. RICE CREEK TRACT C2 PH 5 PRELIMINARY PLAT MAR 22 - ESPC Approval Letter 12.22.21
	c. RICE CREEK TRACT C2 PH 5 PRELIMINARY PLAT MAR 22 - Timeline
	d. RICE CREEK TRACT C2 PH 5 PRELIMINARY PLAT MAR 22 - 1st Comment Letter TR Long 1.21.22
	e. RICE CREEK TRACT C2 PH 5 PRELIMINARY PLAT MAR 22 - 1st Comment Letter Roberts 2.2.22
	f. RICE CREEK TRACT C2 PH 5 PRELIMINARY PLAT MAR 22 - Concurrence Letter TR Long 3.4.22
	g. RICE CREEK TRACT C2 PH 5 PRELIMINARY PLAT MAR 22 - Preliminary Plat 12.8.21
	h. Planning Commission Minutes March 14, 2022 DRAFT

	H. 2626 : Subdivision Application Rice Creek Tract C-1 Ph VI Preliminary Plat MAR 2022
	Policy Paper: 2626 : Subdivision Application Rice Creek Tract C-1 Ph VI Preliminary Plat MAR 2022
	a. RICE CREEK TRACT C1 PH 6 PRELIMINARY PLAT MAR 22 - Application
	b. RICE CREEK TRACT C1 PH 6 PRELIMINARY PLAT MAR 22 - NPDES Letter
	c. RICE CREEK TRACT C1 PH 6 PRELIMINARY PLAT MAR 22 - Timeline
	d. RICE CREEK TRACT C1 PH 6 PRELIMINARY PLAT MAR 22 - 1st Review Comment Letter TR Long 3.7.22
	e. RICE CREEK TRACT C1 PH 6 PRELIMINARY PLAT MAR 22 - Preliminary Plat
	f. Planning Commission Minutes March 14, 2022 DRAFT


	10. Resolutions/Ordinances/Proclamations
	A. 2627 : Resolution to Amend the Zoning Ordinance Regarding Approval of Final Plats 2nd reading
	Policy Paper: 2627 : Resolution to Amend the Zoning Ordinance Regarding Approval of Final Plats 2nd reading
	a. Resolution to Amend the Zoning Ordinance for Approval of Final Plats MARCH 2022
	b. Planning Commission Minutes March 14, 2022 DRAFT

	B. 2633 : Resolution to Support Retreat and Feasibility Study
	Policy Paper: 2633 : Resolution to Support Retreat and Feasibility Study
	a. RES - Supporting Retreat  Feasbility Study

	C. 2632 : Resolution to Transmit Comprehensive Plan
	Policy Paper: 2632 : Resolution to Transmit Comprehensive Plan
	a. Port Wentworth 2021 Comp Plan Adoption Resolution 3-24-22


	11. Executive Session
	A. Litigation
	B. Personnel

	12. Public Comments - Registered Speakers
	13. Adjournment

	Appendix
	4.A · Minutes of Jan 27, 2022 6:30 PM
	7.A · 2628 : Antrim Road Roadway Improvements Pay Request No. 3
	7.A.a · Antrim Roadway Improvements Pay Request No. 3 March 2022

	7.B · 2629 : Red Robin Court Roadway Improvements Pay Request No. 4
	7.B.a · Red Robin Ct Roadway Improvements Pay Request No. 4 March 2022

	9.B · 2621 : MOU between the GDOT and Port Wentworth
	9.B.a · MOU with GDOT Documents

	9.C · 2623 : Oxygen system NOVAIR USA Corp. for the Waste Water Treatment
	9.C.a · NOVAIR Oxygen System Quote

	9.D · 2634 : Agreement for Mutual Aid for 165th FD
	9.D.a · Airport MOU

	9.E · 2622 : Site Plan Review (Specific) Mulberry Blvd Extension 7-0906-04-091 & 7-0906-04-063
	9.E.a · MULBERRY BLVD EXTENSION SPECIFIC SITE PLAN MAR 22 - Application
	9.E.b · MULBERRY BLVD EXTENSION SPECIFIC SITE PLAN MAR 22 - Timeline
	9.E.c · MULBERRY BLVD EXTENSION SPECIFIC SITE PLAN MAR 22 - 1st Comment Letter TR Long 1.20.22
	9.E.d · MULBERRY BLVD EXTENSION SPECIFIC SITE PLAN MAR 22 - 1st Return Comment Letter Pittman 2.28.22
	9.E.e · Planning Commission Minutes March 14, 2022 DRAFT

	9.F · 2624 : Subdivision Application Parkside Phase 1D-2 Final Plat MAR 22
	9.F.a · PARKSIDE PH 1D-2 FINAL PLAT MAR 22 - Application
	9.F.b · PARKSIDE PH 1D-2 FINAL PLAT MAR 22 - Timeline
	9.F.c · PARKSIDE PH 1D-2 FINAL PLAT MAR 22 - Final Plat
	9.F.d · Planning Commission Minutes March 14, 2022 DRAFT

	9.G · 2625 : Subdivision Application Rice Creek Tract C-2 Ph V Preliminary Plat MAR 2022
	9.G.a · RICE CREEK TRACT C2 PH 5 PRELIMINARY PLAT MAR 22 - Application
	9.G.b · RICE CREEK TRACT C2 PH 5 PRELIMINARY PLAT MAR 22 - ESPC Approval Letter 12.22.21
	9.G.c · RICE CREEK TRACT C2 PH 5 PRELIMINARY PLAT MAR 22 - Timeline
	9.G.d · RICE CREEK TRACT C2 PH 5 PRELIMINARY PLAT MAR 22 - 1st Comment Letter TR Long 1.21.22
	9.G.e · RICE CREEK TRACT C2 PH 5 PRELIMINARY PLAT MAR 22 - 1st Comment Letter Roberts 2.2.22
	9.G.f · RICE CREEK TRACT C2 PH 5 PRELIMINARY PLAT MAR 22 - Concurrence Letter TR Long 3.4.22
	9.G.g · RICE CREEK TRACT C2 PH 5 PRELIMINARY PLAT MAR 22 - Preliminary Plat 12.8.21
	9.G.h · Planning Commission Minutes March 14, 2022 DRAFT

	9.H · 2626 : Subdivision Application Rice Creek Tract C-1 Ph VI Preliminary Plat MAR 2022
	9.H.a · RICE CREEK TRACT C1 PH 6 PRELIMINARY PLAT MAR 22 - Application
	9.H.b · RICE CREEK TRACT C1 PH 6 PRELIMINARY PLAT MAR 22 - NPDES Letter
	9.H.c · RICE CREEK TRACT C1 PH 6 PRELIMINARY PLAT MAR 22 - Timeline
	9.H.d · RICE CREEK TRACT C1 PH 6 PRELIMINARY PLAT MAR 22 - 1st Review Comment Letter TR Long 3.7.22
	9.H.e · RICE CREEK TRACT C1 PH 6 PRELIMINARY PLAT MAR 22 - Preliminary Plat
	9.H.f · Planning Commission Minutes March 14, 2022 DRAFT

	10.A · 2627 : Resolution to Amend the Zoning Ordinance Regarding Approval of Final Plats 2nd reading
	10.A.a · Resolution to Amend the Zoning Ordinance for Approval of Final Plats MARCH 2022
	10.A.b · Planning Commission Minutes March 14, 2022 DRAFT

	10.B · 2633 : Resolution to Support Retreat and Feasibility Study
	10.B.a · RES - Supporting Retreat  Feasbility Study

	10.C · 2632 : Resolution to Transmit Comprehensive Plan
	10.C.a · Port Wentworth 2021 Comp Plan Adoption Resolution 3-24-22



